(Unit: million

(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
As of March 31,
2013 2014 2014

(ASSETS)

Cash and deposits .................................................................................. 457,517 698,594 6,787

Call [QANS -+++++eerrerrerraresneesueesseessessseenseensessessesseesnsesseessessseensesnsesnsessesnsenns 391,200 362,800 3,525

Monetary claims bought .......................................................................... 285‘082 281 ,859 2’738

Money held in trust - 56,251 66,400 645

SOCUILIES - +++++ersrerrrermresmremseesseesseeasteaseesesaresaresseeaneeeseesseesseenseenesnnenenennnenns 29,390,963 31,203,581 303,182

OGNS -+ srerseermreaneesseesseesseaaseasesasesaresaeeaneaaseesseeaae e st e nesarenaresan e e e e eneenneens 3,140,990 3,024,702 29,388

Tangib|e fIXEA QSSELS errrrrrrarrarrarnrrrtiitiri i 1,236,270 1,21 5,895 11,813
[T 3 T [E TR 794,387 796,436 7,738
Buildings - 429,573 408,402 3,968
Leased asSets - errerreiiiniiininiiiiiiiiiie s e 7‘600 6,1 41 59
Construction in PrOGIESS -+rsssressnesrassrsssessisttist bttt 524 1,349 13
Other tangible fixed assets:- 4,183 3,566 34

Intangible fixed assets- 215,457 210,053 2,040
Software -----+eeeeeee - 67,479 65,040 631
GOOTWIIl ++veerreermeermeerserreeesseesseeseseeseeseesseesseeseeesseenneesesnsessesnsesneesseess 69,103 77,108 749
Other intangible fixed assets ««+ e 78,874 67,904 659

Reinsurance receivable -------- .- 32,861 33,867 329

Other assets ----eeeeeeeees .- 390,844 516,436 5,017

Deferred tax asSSets «r-rr-reererrrrrirmiririririii - 67,636 5,734 55

Customers' liabilities for acceptances and guarantees ««-««+--eeesvevrneenns 33,446 88,225 857

Reserve for possible 10an 10SSES ++««+ rxrrrsrrmmmiiiiie (4,110) (2,759) (26)

Reserve for possible investment [0SSes «++x«++rvrerrrmniinnie - (215) (2)

TOLAl ASSELS «++vrevveereerrrerrersresreesrersreesseasseaasesresnessreseesneesseesseesseennens 35,694,411 37,705,176 366,354

(LIABILITIES)

Policy reserves and others -« e 31,703,858 33,327,552 323,819
Reserves for outstanding Claims -+« ««eesveereimimi 298,557 358,606 3,484
Policy reserves -« e - 31,012,539 32,574,923 316,507
Reserve for policyholder dividends - 392,761 394,022 3,828

Reinsurance payable:«: -t veeeeennins .- 16,541 27,677 268

Subordinated DONAS - +rrrrrerrrarmriiii 1 547584 107,562 1 ’045

OHEr [IADIlIIES --+++rerreerrrrerresrrermerrereesressreraresaseesseaeesseeseeesseesseessesssesaneens 1,496,592 1,593,272 15,480

Reserve for employees' retirement benefits: oo, 439,734 - -

Net defined benefit liabilities .........cccoevveiierieiiieiieeeeeeeeeeeeee e, — 385,436 3,745

Reserve for retirement benefits of directors,
executive officers and corporate auditors: -« e 2,350 2,163 21

Reserve for possible reimbursement of prescribed claims -« .eeeseennnes 700 800 7

Reserves under the special [aws v 89,228 118,167 1,148
Reserve for price fluctuations <+« seerermmimn 89,228 118,167 1,148

Deferred tax liabilities ----------ereeereenens - 13,511 15,108 146

Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation -«««-««« oo 94,842 91,595 889

Acceptances and guarantees .................................................................. 33,446 88,225 857

Total liabilities «+-««rrerreerere 34,045,391 35,757,563 347,430

(NET ASSETS)

Capital SLOCK «-+rrsesrrsrrrsesensrsenen e 210,207 210,224 2,042

Capital surplus - - 210,207 210,262 2,042

Retained earnings 156,357 219,552 2,133

Treasury stock (13,431) (11,500) (111)

Total shareholders' equ|ty ....................................................................... 563,340 628,538 6,107

Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net of tax - 1,099,351 1,322,731 12,852

Deferred hedge gains (|osses) ................................................................. (1 ,801) (2,586) (25)

Reserve for land revaluation - - - osrerrrrrmarninii (36,995) (38,320) (372)

Foreign currency translation adjustments 18,229 19,756 191

Accumulated remeasurements of defined benefit plans:«-«----ooveeveeeeee — 16,854 163

Total accumulated other comprehensive income 1,078,784 1,318,435 12,810

Subscription r|ghts 10 ShAres resrreerrtntintiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiic 379 583 5

Minority TNEEIESTS o rerererre e 6,514 55 0

Total net aSSets «:reereertintentaritintiaiiiiiiiiieiiitioneiiiosioee 1 ’649’020 1 ’947,61 3 18’923

Total liabilities and net assets:- 35,694,411 37,705,176 366,354

The Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited 105



106

(Unit: million

(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Year ended March 31,
2013 2014 2014

Ordinary FEVENUES :-+rvrsatenseusconnsrnerssrassnsansarsssnsnneinsisrontassonssssesniansonsesionsonss 5‘283’989 6’044’955 58’734
Premium and other iNComME «++++++vveeerieiiiii 3,646,831 4,353,229 42,297
INVESTMENT INCOME ++rrrrmrrrr e 1,335,120 1 ,320,066 1 2,826
Interest and dividends 709,592 797,309 7,746
Gains on investments in trading SECUIties ««--x-sersersmrinniiniinins 19,492 20,659 200
Gains on sale of SECUNtIES ««xwrrerrrrrrmmm 226,587 210,417 2,044
Gains on redemption of securities 3,887 25,418 246
Foreign exchange gains .................................................................. 18,704 — —
Reversal of reserve for possible 10an 10SSes «+««+ ererreminiiiniiinnnens 912 1,329 12
Other investment income -«+--+++eereeeeesininns 20,649 2,568 24
Gains on investments in separate aCCOUNtS «+-«+«wrererereninininins 335,295 262,363 2,549
Other ordinary FEVENUES -+ rrrrrrrrrarrartarnarunsnstiraarassasnarnararsrsaranrssarnarnnnas 302,037 371,659 3,611
Ordinary EXPIENSES #++srressnserasstaet ittt 5,126,695 5,740,205 55,773
Benefits and Claims «--resrereareerrminiiii i 2,795,355 2,903,587 28,212
10712 110V P 798,773 772,715 7,507
Annuities- 556,474 576,951 5,605
BENEFILS «++vveerreerersrersaneesrnresiseesasessaseeasseeessessaseesssseesaseesassessaseesnseess 540,349 497,867 4,837
SUITENAEr VAIUES «++rerrerrrrartrtariiiitiiir s e 652’870 693’785 6’741
Other refunds 246,886 362,267 3,519
Provision for policy reserves and others «« e, 1,191,953 1,634,864 15,884
Provision for reserves for outstanding claims «--------eeeeeneennnnnnnns 53,489 61,004 592
Provision for policy reserves 1,129,293 1,564,912 15,205
Provision for interest on policyholder dividends -« eeeeenniiinnen. 9,170 8,946 86
Investment EXPENSES ++vrresrrersnttrssttart ettt 221 ’738 234’950 2’282
Interest expenses ----««-xeeeuneees 20,046 20,005 194
Losses on money held in trust -- 14,009 13,356 129
Losses on sale of securities ------ 66,203 67,494 655
Losses on valuation of securities - 3,210 1,407 13
Losses on redemption of securities - 1,637 3,050 29
Derivative transaction losses:------ 63,369 61,093 593
Foreign exchange [0Sses:« - «« ravrermminninniiniins - 13,233 128
Provision for reserve for possible investment losses — 215 2
Write-down Of 10aNS «+«+ererremrmmmmniii e 429 31 0
Depreciation of real estate for rent and others- 14,606 14,198 137
Other investment expenses- 38,224 40,862 397
Operating expenses -----:---:- 486,419 517,566 5,028
Other ordinary EXPIENSES ##rrrrrraasrrrssraassrtas st 431,227 449’236 4,364
OFAINANY POFit ssreeseeresreesiisstisisintinii 157,294 304,750 2,961
Extraordinary gains .................................................................................. 8’882 3’634 35
Gains on disposal of fixed assets - 8,880 3,624 35
Other extraordinary gains .................................................................... 2 10 0
Extraordinary |OSSES +ererrrertartertititiititiiiiiiii e e 24,054 67,374 654
Losses on disposal of fixed assets - 6,350 13,890 134
Impairment losses on fixed assets - 3,128 23,890 232
Provision for reserve for price fluctuations- 14,397 28,939 281
Other extraordinary |OSSES +rereererrerrurnirnirartartariirii i 179 654 6
Provision for reserve for policyholder dividends -«««--«eeseeemriinniniiiinnns 86,000 94,000 913
Income before income taxes and minority iNterests -« e 56,122 147,010 1,428
Corporate iNCOME taxeS-CUIMTENT -«++-xxerasrerrmrrmniiii e 80,625 117,221 1,138
Corporate income taxes-deferred-- (54,086) (46,467) (451)
Total of corporate income taxes::--- 26,538 70,753 687
Income before minority interests 29,583 76,256 740
Minority interests in gain (loss) of sub3|d|anes (2,843) (1,674) (16)
Net income for the YA -+ eerneerrn et 32,427 77’931 757

The Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited




(Unit: million

(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Year ended March 31,
2013 2014 2014
Income before minority INterests « -« e 29,583 76,256 740
Other comprehensive income
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net of tax ««+-««wweeemeeennns 615,900 224,078 2,177
Deferred hedge gains (I0SSES) -«+xwxrrrererrsrrrsmmsinn e (1,757) (784) (7)
Reserve for 1and revaluation -+« -« e 97) (269) (2
Foreign currency translation adjustments 23,904 (4,131) (40)
Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries and
affiliates accounted for under the equity method: -« -eveeveieinennnns 3,141 5,031 48
Total other comprehensive INCOME «««+++ - rrrrermnmrrin e 641,091 223,924 2,175
COMPrehenSiVe INCOME: -+ srrrrrersrrsrre e 670,675 300,180 2,916
(Details)
Attributable to shareholders of the parent company:««--««+seeereeeenneee 673,243 301,783 2,932
Attributable to minority iNterests -« (2,568) (1,603) (15)
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(Unit: million

(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Year ended March 31,
2013 2014 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interests 56,122 147,010 1,428
Depreciation of rented real estate and others - 14,606 14,198 137
Depreciation 39,992 38,278 371
Impairment losses on fixed assets- 3,128 23,890 232
Amortization of goodwill 3,839 4,490 43
Increase (decrease) in reserves for outstanding claims - 43,517 64,445 626

Increase (decrease) in Policy reserves: « -« xuueeeees - 1,134,919 1,563,285 15,189
Provision for interest on policyholder dividends --- 9,170 8,946 86

Provision for (reversal of) reserve for policyholder dividends 86,000 94,000 913
Increase (decrease) in reserve for possible loan losses (1,469) (1,351) (13)
Increase (decrease) in reserve for possible investment losses - (142) 215 2
Write-down of loans 429 31 0
Increase (decrease) in reserve for employees' retirement benefits 5,941 — —
Increase (decrease) in net defined benefit liabilities — (29,962) (291)
Increase (decrease) in reserve for retirement benefits of directors,

executive officers and corporate auditors -« s (188) (186) (1)
Increase (decrease) in reserve for possible reimbursement of prescribed claims ------ (300) 100 0
Increase (decrease) in reserve for price fluctuations-:- 14,397 28,939 281
Interest and dividends (709,592) (797,309) (7,746)
Securities related losses (gains) (514,210) (446,907) (4,342)
Interest expenses 20,046 20,005 194
Foreign exchange losses (gains) - (18,704) 13,233 128
Losses (gains) on disposal of fixed assets (2,530) 9,764 94
Equity in losses (income) of affiliates (2,652) (5,359) (52)
Decrease (increase) in reinsurance receivable ... . 10,016 (993) 9)
Decrease (increase) in other assets unrelated to investing and financing activities ..... (16,705) (73,269) (711)
Increase (decrease) in reinSUrance Payable .........ccooeveeieerereeriesieseeree et 2,184 11,554 112
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities unrelated to investing and financing activities .. 27,947 (31,334) (304)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable relating to introduction of

defined-contribution pension plan — 22,133 215
Others, net 96,361 115,120 1,118

Subtotal - 302,125 792,970 7,704

Interest and dividends received 738,053 837,102 8,133

Interest paid (19,722) (191)
Policyholder dividends paid (101,686) (988)
Others, net (297,517) (2,890)
Corporate income taxes paid (117,175) (1,138)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities 487,703 1,093,970 10,629
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of monetary claims bought (20,800) (33,040) (321)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of monetary claims bought 28,701 32,924 319
Purchases of money held in trust--- (28,500) (283,287) (226)
Proceeds from decrease in money held in trust- 1,477 - -
Purchases of securities -« e (8,441,421) (8,698,928) (84,521)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of securities- 7,837,464 7,680,239 74,623
Origination of loans (402,048) (612,363) (5,949)
Proceeds from collection of loans:- .- 687,176 728,934 7,082
Others, Nt e - 162,616 205,504 1,996
Total of net cash provided by (used in) investment transactions --- (170,335) (720,015) (6,995)
Total of net cash provided by (used in) operating activities and

investment transactions --- 317,368 373,955 3,633
Acquisition of tangible fixed assets.... (34,178) (38,333) (372)
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets 32,592 15,058 146
Acquisition of intangible fixed assets---- (20,322) (19,249) (187)
Proceeds from sale of intangible fixed assets::- 89 18 0
Acquisition of stock of subsidiaries resulting in change in scope of consolidation - - (2,236) (21)

Acquisition of stock of subsidiaries: -« e - — (18,501) (179)

Payments for execution of assets retirement obligations -- — 3) (0)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities (192,153) (783,262) (7,610)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of borrowings - (2,210) (31,959) (310)
Redemption of bonds — (51,624) (501)
Repayment of financial lease obligations (1,338) (1,735) (16)
Proceeds from disposal of treasury stock 2,165 1,932 18
Cash dividends paid (15,746) (15,787) (153)
Others, net (8) (14) (0)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities (17,138) (99,189) (963)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 5,919 1,157 11
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 284,330 212,676 2,066
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 564,387 848,717 8,246
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 848,717 1,061,394 10,312
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(Unit: million yen)

Year ended March 31, 2014

Shareholders’ equity

Capital Capital Retained Treasury Total sareholders’
stock surplus earnings stock equity
Balance at the beginning of the year............cccccceviiiiiiiinciins 210,207 210,207 156,357 (13,431) 563,340
Changes for the year
Issuance of new shares—exercise of subscription rights to
shares 17 17 35
Dividends (15,855) (15,855)
Net income for the year 77,931 77,931
Disposal of treasury stock 37 1,930 1,967
Transfer from retained earnings to capital surplus..........ccccceuee.. -
Transfer from reserve for land revaluation................ccceeeveevueenns 1,055 1,055
OLhEIS . 62 62
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity ..............
Total changes for the year 17 54 63,194 1,930 65,197
Balance at the end of the year ..........ccocvvererieiceercceeeeee 210,224 210,262 219,552 (11,500) 628,538

(Unit: million yen)

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Net unrealized
gains (losses) on

Deferred hedge

Foreign currency

Reserve for land )
translation

securities, net gains (losses) revaluation adjustments
of tax
Balance at the beginning of the year............ccoveiiiiiciccs 1,099,351 (1,801) (36,995) 18,229
Changes for the year
Issuance of new shares—exercise of subscription rights to
SNAIES......iiiiiciic
Dividends
Net income for the year
Disposal of treasury stock
Transfer from retained earnings to capital surplus.
Transfer from reserve for land revaluation
Others
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity .. 223,379 (784) (1,325) 1,527
Total changes for the year 223,379 (784) (1,325) 1,527
Balance at the end of the year .... 1,322,731 (2,586) (38,320) 19,756
(Unit: million yen)
Accumulated other
comprehensive income
Accumulated  Total accumulated ~ Subscription Minority Total net
remeasurements other rights to shares interests assets
of defined benefit ~ comprehensive
plans income
Balance at the beginning of the year..........c.ccooeeiiinninccee — 1,078,784 379 6,514 1,649,020
Changes for the year
Issuance of new shares—exercise of subscription rights to
SNAIES......ccviiiiiiici 35
DIVIAENAS ...eveeeiciieeeeeeeee et e e e e e aae e e e eana e e e e aae e e e eeannaeenn (15,855)
Net income for the Year ..o 77,931
Disposal of treasury StocK ..........ccceeeririinciniincnecees 1,967
Transfer from retained earnings to capital surplus... -
Transfer from reserve for land revaluation 1,055
Others . 62
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity 16,854 239,651 203 (6,458) 233,396
Total changes for the year 16,854 239,651 203 (6,458) 298,593
Balance at the end of the year ...... 16,854 1.318,435 583 55 1,947,613
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(Unit: million US dollars)

Year ended March 31, 2014

Shareholders’ equity

Capital Capital Retained Treasury Total sareholders’
stock surplus earnings stock equity
Balance at the beginning of the year.............cccocoooviinn 2,042 2,042 1,519 (130) 5,473
Changes for the year
Issuance of new shares—exercise of subscription rights to
shares 0 0 0
Dividends (154) (154)
Net income for the year 757 757
Disposal of treasury stock 0 18 19
Transfer from retained earnings to capital surplus..........ccccceeee.. -
Transfer from reserve for land revaluation................ccceeeveevueenns 10 10
(171 £ 0 0
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity ..............
Total changes for the year - 0 0 614 18 633
Balance at the end of the year ..o, 2,042 2,042 2,133 (111) 6,107

(Unit: million US dollars)

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Net unrealized
gains (losses) on
securities, net
of tax

Foreign currency
translation
adjustments

Deferred hedge  Reserve for land
gains (losses) revaluation

Balance at the beginning of the year..........cccooeiiiiiininccceee 10,681
Changes for the year
Issuance of new shares—exercise of subscription rights to
SNAIES......iiiiicic
Dividends
Net income for the year
Disposal of treasury stock
Transfer from retained earnings to capital surplus.
Transfer from reserve for land revaluation
Others
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity ..

2,170

17 (359) 177

@) (12) 14

Total changes for the year 2,170

7) (12) 14

Balance at the end of the year .... 12,852

(25) (372) 191

(Unit: million US dollars)

Accumulated other
comprehensive income

Accumulated  Total accumulated ~ Subscription Minority Total net
remeasurements other rights to shares interests assets
of defined benefit  comprehensive
plans income
Balance at the beginning of the year..........c.ccooeeieinnincece — 10,481 3 63 16,022
Changes for the year
Issuance of new shares—exercise of subscription rights to
SNAIES......cviiiicii 0
DIVIAENAS ...eeeeeiciieeeeeeeeee et e et e e e e e eane e e e e an e e e e eannaaenn (154)
Net income for the Year .........coceeeiiiirinreceeee e 757
Disposal of treasury StocK ..........ccceeeririiniceniincnecees 19
Transfer from retained earnings to capital surplus... -
Transfer from reserve for land revaluation 10
Others . 0
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity 163 2,328 1 (62) 2,267
Total changes for the year 163 2,328 1 (62) 2,901
Balance at the end of the year ...... 163 12,810 5 0 18,923
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(Unit: million yen)

Year ended March 31, 2013

Shareholders’ equity

Capital Capital Retained Treasury Total sareholders’
stock surplus earnings stock equity
Balance at the beginning of the year............cccccceviiiiiiiinciins 210,200 210,200 165,557 (16,708) 569,253
Changes for the year
Issuance of new shares—exercise of subscription rights to
SNAIES ...ttt 7 7 14
Dividends (15,818) (15,818)
Net income for the year 32,427 32,427
Disposal of treasury Stock ..........cccccvuceriiiiiiiiniiciccccins (1,090 3,272 2,182
Transfer from retained earnings to capital surplus. 1,090 (1,090) _
Transfer from reserve for land revaluation.. (24,718) (24,718)
Others .. 0 0
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity ..
Total changes for the year 7 7 (9,199) 3,272 (5,912)
Balance at the end of the year ... 210,207 210,207 156,357 (13,431) 563,340

(Unit: million yen)

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Net unrealized
gains (losses) on

Deferred hedge

Reserve for land

Foreign currency

L N y translation
securities, net gains (losses) revaluation N
of tax adjustments
Balance at the beginning of the year...........cccoviinnninnns 483,446 (44) (61,616) (8,535)
Changes for the year
Issuance of new shares—exercise of subscription rights to
shares
Dividends
Net income for the year
Disposal of treasury stock ..
Transfer from retained earnings to capital surplus.
Transfer from reserve for land revaluation
Others
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity 615,905 (1,757) 24,621 26,765
Total changes for the year 615,905 (1,757) 24,621 26,765
Balance at the end of the Year ..........ccceevrerrennieneccreeeeesies 1,099,351 (1.801) (36,995) 18,229
(Unit: million yen)
Accumulated other
comprehensive income
Accumulated  Total accumulated ~ Subscription Minority Total net
remeasurements other rights to shares interests assets
of defined benefit ~ comprehensive
plans income
Balance at the beginning of the year..........c.ccooeeiiinninccee — 413,249 150 9,091 991,745
Changes for the year
Issuance of new shares—exercise of subscription rights to
SNAIES......ccviiiiiiici 14
DIVIAENAS ...eveeeiciieeeeeeeee et e e e e e aae e e e eana e e e e aae e e e eeannaeenn (15,818)
Net income for the Year ..o 32,427
Disposal of treasury StocK ..........ccceeeririinciniincnecees 2,182
Transfer from retained earnings to capital surplus. -
Transfer from reserve for land revaluation . (24,718)
(10T £ 0
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity .............. — 665,534 229 (2,577) 663,187
Total changes for the year ...........ccccveoiiiiinicccee — 665,534 229 (2,577) 657,274
Balance at the end of the year ...........ccocvvererieiicereeeeee - 1,078,784 379 6,514 1,649,020
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The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared from the accounts maintained by The Dai-
ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited (“DL”, the “Company” or the “Parent Company”) and its consolidated subsidiaries
in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, and in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan (“Japanese GAAP”) which are different in certain respects from the
application and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

Certain items presented in the consolidated financial statements are reclassified for the convenience of readers
outside Japan. The notes to the consolidated financial statements include information which is not required under
Japanese GAAP but is presented herein as additional information.

The amounts indicated in millions of yen are rounded down by truncating the figures below one million. Totals may
not add up exactly because of such truncation. Amounts in U.S. dollars are included solely for the convenience of
readers outside Japan. The rate of ¥102.92=US$1.00, the foreign exchange rate on March 31, 2014, has been used
for translation of the truncated figures in Japanese yen. The inclusion of such amounts is not intended to imply that
Japanese yen has been or could be readily converted, realized or settled into U.S. dollars at that rate or any other rate.

Scope of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of DL and its consolidated subsidiaries (collectively,

“the Group”), including The Dai-ichi Life Information Systems Co., Ltd., The Dai-ichi Frontier Life Insurance Co.,

Ltd. (“DFLI”), Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company of Vietnam, Limited (“DLVN”) and TAL Dai-ichi Life Australia Pty Ltd
(“TDLA”). The number of consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2014 was twenty-one. Effective the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2014, seven new subsidiaries of TDLA and one new subsidiary of DLVN are included in the scope
of consolidation. Two subsidiaries of TDLA are excluded from the scope of the consolidation as TDLA disposed of its
interest in the subsidiaries.

The main subsidiaries that are not consolidated for the purposes of financial reporting are Dai-ichi Seimei Sogo
Service K.K., Dai-ichi Seimei Business Service K.K and First U Anonymous Association. The fifteen non-consolidated
subsidiaries as of March 31, 2014 had, individually and in the aggregate, a minimal impact on the consolidated
financial statements in terms of total assets, sales, net income, retained earnings, cash flows, and others.

There was no non-consolidated subsidiary accounted for under the equity method as of March 31, 2014.

The number of affiliated companies under the equity method as of March 31, 2014 was thirty-two. The affiliated
companies included DIAM Co., Ltd., Mizuho-DL Financial Technology Co., Ltd., Japan Real Estate Asset Management
Co., Ltd., Trust & Custody Services Bank Ltd., Corporate-pension Business Service Co., Ltd., Japan Excellent Asset
Management Co., Ltd., NEOSTELLA CAPITAL CO., LTD., OCEAN LIFE INSURANCE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED,
Star Union Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company Limited, Janus Capital Group Inc. and PT Panin Internasional. Effective
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, one subsidiary of Janus Capital Group Inc., PT Panin Internasional and its
subsidiary were newly included in the scope of the equity method. The non-consolidated subsidiaries (Dai-ichi
Seimei Sogo Service K.K., Dai-ichi Seimei Business Service K.K. and First U Anonymous Association and others), as
well as affiliated companies (CVC No.1 Investment Limited Partnership, CVC No.2 Investment Limited Partnership,
NEOSTELLA No.1 Investment Limited Partnership, O.M. Building Management Co., Ltd., and others) were not
accounted for under the equity method. These companies had, individually and in the aggregate, a minimal impact on
the consolidated financial statements, in terms of the net income (loss), retained earnings and others.

Year-end Dates of Consolidated Subsidiaries

The closing date of domestic consolidated subsidiaries is March 31, whereas that of consolidated overseas
subsidiaries is December 31 or March 31. Financial information as of those closing dates is used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements, although the necessary adjustments are made when significant transactions take
place between the account closing date of an individual subsidiary and that of the consolidated financial statements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(1) Valuation Methods of Securities
Securities held by DL and its consolidated subsidiaries including cash equivalents, bank deposits, and monetary
claims bought which are equivalent to marketable securities, and marketable securities managed as trust assets in
money held in trust, are carried as explained below:
The amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts is calculated by the straight-line method.

a) Trading Securities
Trading securities are carried at fair value with cost determined by the moving average method.
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b) Held-to-maturity Bonds
Held-to-maturity bonds are stated at amortized cost determined by the moving average method.

c) Policy-reserve-matching Bonds (in accordance with the Industry Audit Committee Report No.21 “Temporary
Treatment of Accounting and Auditing Concerning Policy-reserve-matching Bonds in the Insurance Industry”
issued by the Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (JICPA))

Policy-reserve-matching bonds are stated at amortized cost determined by the moving average method.

d) Stocks of Non-consolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies Not Accounted for under the Equity Method
Stocks of non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies not accounted for under the equity method are
stated at cost determined by the moving average method.

e) Available-for-sale Securities
i) Available-for-sale Securities with Market Value
Available-for-sale securities which have market value are valued at fair value at the end of the fiscal year (for
domestic stocks, the average fair value during March), with cost determined by the moving average method.
ii) Available-for-sale Securities Whose Market Values Are Extremely Difficult to Recognize
a. Government/Corporate Bonds (including Foreign Bonds), Whose Premium or Discount Represents the
Interest Adjustment
Government/corporate bonds (including foreign bonds), whose premium or discount represents the interest
adjustment are valued at the amortized cost determined by the moving average method.
b. Others
All others are valued at cost determined by the moving average method.
Net unrealized gains or losses on these available-for-sale securities are presented as a separate component
of net assets and not in the consolidated statement of earnings.

(2) Valuation Method of Derivative Transactions
Derivative transactions are reported at fair value.

(3) Depreciation of Depreciable Assets
a) Depreciation of Tangible Fixed Assets Excluding Leased Assets
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets excluding leased assets is calculated by the declining balance method
(the depreciation of buildings other than attached improvements and structures is calculated by the straight-line

method).
Estimated useful lives of major assets are as follows:
Buildings two to sixty years
Other tangible fixed assets two to twenty years

Tangible fixed assets other than land and buildings that were acquired for ¥100,000 or more but less than
¥200,000 are depreciated at equal amounts over three years.

With respect to tangible fixed assets that are acquired on or before March 31, 2007 and that are depreciated
to their final depreciable limit, effective the year ended March 31, 2008, the remaining values are depreciated
at equal amounts over five years following the year end when such assets were depreciated to their final
depreciable limit.

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets owned by consolidated subsidiaries in Japan is principally calculated by
the declining balance method, while the straight-line method is principally used to compute depreciation for such
assets of consolidated overseas subsidiaries.

b) Amortization of Intangible Fixed Assets Excluding Leased Assets
DL and its consolidated subsidiaries use the straight-line method for amortization of intangible fixed assets
excluding leased assets. Amortization of software for internal use is based on the estimated useful lives of four to
eight years.

c) Depreciation of Leased Assets
Depreciation of leased assets with regard to finance leases whose ownership does not transfer to the lessees is
computed under the straight-line method assuming zero salvage value.

(4) Reserve for Possible Loan Losses
The reserve for possible loan losses is calculated based on the internal rules for self-assessment, write-offs, and
reserves on assets.

For loans to and claims on obligors that have already experienced bankruptcy, reorganization, or other formal
legal failure (hereafter, “bankrupt obligors”) and loans to and claims on obligors that have suffered substantial
business failure (hereafter, “substantially bankrupt obligors”), the reserve is calculated by deducting the estimated
recoverable amount of the collateral or guarantees from the book value of the loans and claims after the direct
write-off described below.
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For loans and claims on obligors that have not yet suffered business failure but are considered highly likely to fail
(hereafter, “obligors at risk of bankruptcy”), the reserve is calculated, taking into account a) the recoverable amount
covered by the collateral or guarantees and b) an overall assessment of the obligor’s ability to pay.

For other loans and claims, the reserve is calculated by multiplying the actual rate or other appropriate rate of
losses from bad debts during a certain period in the past by the amount of the loans and claims.

For all loans and claims, the relevant department in DL performs an asset quality assessment based on the
internal rules for self-assessment, and an independent audit department audits the result of the assessment. The
above reserves are established based on the result of this assessment.

For loans and claims to bankrupt and substantially bankrupt obligors, the unrecoverable amount is calculated by
deducting the amount deemed recoverable from collateral and guarantees from the amount of the loans and claims
and is directly written off from the amount of the loans and claims. The amounts written off during the years ended
March 31, 2013 and 2014 were ¥472 million and ¥67 million (US$0 million), respectively.

(5) Reserve for Possible Investment Losses
In order to provide for future investment losses, a reserve for possible investment losses of DL is established for
securities whose market values are extremely difficult to recognize. It is calculated based on the internal rules for
self-assessment, write-offs, and reserves on assets.

(6) Reserve for Retirement Benefits of Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Auditors
For the reserve for retirement benefits of directors, executive officers and corporate auditors of DL, a) an
estimated amount for future payment out of the total amount of benefits for past service approved by the 105th
general meeting of representative policyholders of DL and b) an estimated amount for future corporate-pension
payments to directors, executive officers, and corporate auditors who retired before the 105th general meeting of
representative policyholders of DL are provided.

For the reserve for retirement benefits of directors, executive officers, and corporate auditors of certain

consolidated subsidiaries, an amount considered to have been rationally incurred is provided.

(7) Reserve for Possible Reimbursement of Prescribed Claims
To prepare for the reimbursement of claims for which prescription periods had expired, DL provided for reserve for
possible reimbursement of prescribed claims an estimated amount based on past reimbursement experience.

(8) Net Defined Benefit Liabilities
For the net defined benefit liabilities, the amount is provided by deducting the pension assets from the projected
benefit obligations based on the estimated amounts as of March 31, 2014.

a) Allocation of Estimated Retirement Benefits
In calculating the projected benefit obligations, the straight-line method is adopted to allocate estimated
retirement benefits to the period until March 31, 2014.

b) Amortization of Actuarial Differences and Past Service Cost
Past service cost is amortized under the straight-line method through a certain period (three years) within the
employees’ average remaining service period.
Actuarial differences are amortized under the straight-line method through a certain period (three or seven
years) within the employees’ average remaining service period, starting from the following year.
Certain consolidated subsidiaries applied the simplified method in calculating their projected benefit
obligations.

(9) Reserve for Price Fluctuations
A reserve for price fluctuations is calculated based on the book value of stocks and other securities at the end of
the year in accordance with the provisions of Article 115 of the Insurance Business Act.

(10) Translation of Assets and Liabilities Denominated in Foreign Currencies into Yen
DL translated foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities (excluding stocks of its non-consolidated
subsidiaries and affiliated companies not accounted for under the equity method) into yen at the prevailing
exchange rates at the end of the year. Stocks of non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies not
accounted for under the equity method are translated into yen at the exchange rates on the dates of acquisition.
Assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses of DL’s consolidated overseas subsidiaries are translated to yen at the
exchange rates at the end of their fiscal year. Translation adjustments associated with the consolidated overseas
subsidiaries are included in foreign currency translation adjustments in the net assets section of the consolidated
balance sheet.

For certain consolidated subsidiaries of DL, changes in fair value of bonds included in foreign currency-
denominated available-for-sale securities related to foreign currency-denominated insurance contracts are divided
into two: changes in fair value due to changes in market prices in their original currencies are accounted for as
“net unrealized gains (losses) on securities”, and the remaining changes are reported in “foreign exchange gains
(losses)”.
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(11) Methods for Hedge Accounting

a) Methods for Hedge Accounting
Hedging transactions are accounted for in accordance with the “Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments”
(ASBJ Statement No.10 issued on March 10, 2008). Primarily, i) special hedge accounting and the deferral
hedge method for interest rate swaps are used for cash flow hedges of certain loans, government and corporate
bonds, loans payable and bonds payabile; ii) the currency allotment method and the deferral hedge method using
foreign currency swaps and foreign currency forward contracts are used for cash flow hedges against exchange
rate fluctuations in certain foreign currency-denominated bonds, loans, loans payable and bonds payable and
certain foreign currency-denominated term deposits and stocks (forecasted transaction); iii) the fair value hedge
method using currency options and foreign currency forward contracts is used for hedges against exchange
rate fluctuations in the value of certain foreign currency-denominated bonds; and iv) the deferral hedge method
and fair value hedge method using equity options and equity forward contracts are used for hedges against
price fluctuations in the value of certain domestic stocks and foreign currency-denominated stocks (forecasted
transaction).

b) Hedging Instruments and Hedged ltems

Hedging instruments Hedged items
Interest rate SWapPS ......ccoocceeirieer e Loans, government and corporate bonds, loans
payable, bonds payable
Foreign CurrenCy SWaps ........ccocceeecveeneerseenine e Foreign currency-denominated bonds, foreign currency-

denominated loans, foreign currency-denominated
loans payable, foreign currency-denominated bonds
payable

Foreign currency forward contracts .........c.cccceevveeeennneen. Foreign currency-denominated bonds, foreign
currency-denominated term deposits, foreign currency-
denominated stocks (forecasted transaction)

Currency options Foreign currency-denominated bonds

Equity options ......cociiiiiiii e Domestic stocks, foreign currency-denominated stocks
(forecasted transaction)
Equity forward contracts ........ccccceeceenieriieiicnieeneccee Domestic stocks

c) Hedging Policies
DL conducts hedging transactions with regard to certain market risk and foreign currency risk of underlying
assets to be hedged, in accordance with the internal investment policy and procedure guidelines.

d) Assessment of Hedge Effectiveness
Hedge effectiveness is assessed primarily by a comparison of fluctuations in cash flows or fair value of hedged
items to those of hedging instruments.

(12) Amortization of Goodwill
Gooduwill is amortized over a period up to 20 years under the straight-line method. The entire amount is expensed
as incurred if the amount is immaterial.

(13) Scope of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows consist of the following items contained
in the consolidated balance sheet: cash and deposits, call loans, commercial paper included in monetary claims
bought, money market funds included in securities, and overdrafts included in other liabilities.

(14) Calculation of National and Local Consumption Tax
DL and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries account for national and local consumption tax by the tax-exclusion
method. Deferred consumption tax included in non-recoverable consumption tax on certain assets is capitalized
as other assets and amortized equally over five years in accordance with the Enforcement Ordinance of the
Corporation Tax Act, and such taxes other than deferred consumption tax are recognized as an expense when
incurred.

(15) Policy Reserves
Policy reserves of DL and its consolidated subsidiaries that operate a life insurance business in Japan are
established in accordance with Article 116 of the Insurance Business Act. Insurance premium reserves are
calculated as follows:

a) Reserves for policies subject to the standard policy reserve rules are calculated based on the methods stipulated
by the Commissioner of Financial Services Agency (Notification of the Minister of Finance No. 48, 1996).

b) Reserves for other policies are established based on the net level premium method.
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(Additional information)

Effective the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, for whole life insurance contracts acquired by DL on or before
March 31, 1996 for which premium payments were already completed (including lump-sum payments), additional
policy reserves are provided in accordance with Article 69, Paragraph 5 of the Enforcement Regulation of the
Insurance Business Act and will be provided in the following nine years. As a result, the amount of the provisions
for policy reserves for the year ended March 31, 2013 and 2014 were ¥150,798 million and ¥126,720 million
(US$1,231 million), respectively.

(16) Changes in Accounting Policies

Effective the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, DL and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries applied “Accounting
Standard for Retirement Benefits” (ASBJ Statement No. 26 issued on May 17, 2012, hereinafter “the Standard”)
and “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits” (ASBJ Guidance No. 25 issued on May 17, 2012,
hereinafter “the Guidance”), except for provisions stipulated in Paragraph 35 of the Standard and Paragraph 67 of
the Guidance.

As DL changed the calculation method of net defined benefit liabilities to record them as the projected benefit
obligations minus pension assets, the unrecognized actuarial differences and unrecognized past service cost were
recorded as net defined benefit liabilities.

Upon the adoption of these new standards, DL followed the transitional treatment stipulated in Paragraph 37 of
the Standard and the impact of adoption as of March 31, 2014 is included in the accumulated remeasurements of
defined benefit plans as a component of the accumulated other comprehensive income.

As a result, DL recorded ¥385,436 million (US$3,745 million) of net defined benefit liabilities. Also accumulated
other comprehensive income of DL as of March 31, 2014 increased by ¥16,854 million (US$163 million) as
compared to what it would have been if calculated using the previous method.

The impact on per-share information is described XIX. PER SHARE INFORMATION.

(17) Accounting Standard and Guidance Scheduled to be Applied

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, accounting standards and the relevant guidance that are not yet applied
but scheduled to be applied are as follows:
a) Retirement Benefits
e “Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits” (ASBJ Statement No. 26 issued on May 17, 2012), and
e “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits” (ASBJ Guidance No. 25 issued on May 17, 2012)
i) Overview
From the viewpoint of improvements to financial reporting and promoting international convergence, ASBJ
revised the standard and guidance to improve accounting for unrecognized actuarial differences and
unrecognized prior service cost and calculation of projected benefit obligations and service costs and to
enhance related disclosures.
i) Scheduled date for application
DL will apply the revised method for calculating projected benefit obligations and service cost effective the
fiscal year beginning April 1, 2014, although it applied the other components of the standard and guidance at
the end of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014.
iii) Impact of applying the standard and guidance
The impact of applying the standard and guidance is currently under assessment.

b) Business Combination and Others

e “Accounting Standard for Business Combination” (ASBJ Statement No.21 issued on September 13, 2013),

e “Accounting Standard for Consolidated Financial Statements” (ASBJ Statement No.22 issued on September
13, 2013),

e “Accounting Standard for Business Divestitures” (ASBJ Statement No.7 issued on September 13, 2013),

e “Accounting Standard for Earnings Per Share” (ASBJ Statement No.2 issued on September 13, 2013),

e “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Business Combinations and Accounting Standard for Business
Divestitures” (ASBJ Guidance No.10 issued on September 13, 2013) and

e “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Earnings Per Share” (ASBJ Guidance No.4 issued on September 13,
2013)

i) Overview
ASBUJ revised the standards and guidance focusing on
v treatment of changes in a parent company’s stake in its subsidiary in case the parent company continues to

control the subsidiary at the time of acquiring additional stake in the subsidiary

v treatment of expenses related to the acquisition
v presentation of net income and transition from minority interests to non-controlling interests, and
v tentative accounting treatment.

ii) Scheduled date for application
DL will apply the revised standards and guidance effective the fiscal year beginning April 1, 2015, although it
will apply the tentative accounting treatment for the business combination conducted on or after April 1, 2015.

iii) Impact of applying the standard and guidance
The impact of applying the standards and guidance is currently under assessment.
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(18) Policy Acquisition Costs
The costs of acquiring and renewing business, which include agent commissions and certain other costs directly
related to the acquisition of business, are expensed when incurred as the Insurance Business Act in Japan does not
permit insurance companies to defer and amortize these costs.

1. Assets Pledged as Collateral / Secured Liabilities
The amounts of securities and cash/deposits pledged as collateral were as follows:

As of March 31,

2013 2014 2014
R (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Securities (Government boNds)..........ceecceeeeciieeeeciee e 620,782 752,581 7,312
Securities (FOreign SECUIMTIES) .......civviriiieiiiinieiieee e 3,753 4,149 40
Securities (Corporate bonds) ........cccveeeeciieecceeeeee e 534 527 5
Cash/dEPOSILS .......ccocuiiiuiiiriiiec et 86 86 0
Securities and cash/deposits pledged as collateral.............cccoceeeeene 625,157 757,345 7,358
The amounts of secured liabilities were as follows:
As of March 31,
2013 2014 2014
N (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Cash collateral for securities lending transactions............cccceeceeennees 568,433 773,937 7,519
LOANS PAYADIE ...t e 5 3 0
Secured liabilities .........ceeeieiieiiiieiee e 568,438 773,941 7,519

“Securities (Government bonds)” pledged as collateral for securities lending transactions with cash collateral as of
March 31, 2013 and 2014 were ¥537,715 million and ¥726,832 million (US$7,062 million), respectively.

2. Securities Lending
Securities lent under lending agreements are included in the consolidated balance sheet. The total balance of
securities lent as of March 31, 2013 and 2014 were ¥741,123 million and ¥1,148,500 million (US$11,159 million),
respectively.

3. Policy-reserve-matching Bonds

(1) Book Value and Market Value
The book value and the market value of policy-reserve-matching bonds as of March 31, 2013 and 2014 were as

follows:
As of March 31,
2013 2014 2014
G (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
BOOK VAIUE. ...ttt ettt 10,794,851 12,461,047 121,075
Market value 12,005,334 13,539,746 131,556

(2) Risk Management Policy
DL and its certain subsidiary categorize their insurance products into sub-groups by the attributes of each product
and, in order to manage risks properly, formulate their policies on investments and resource allocation based on
the balance of the sub-groups. Moreover, they periodically check that the duration gap between policy-reserve-
matching bonds and policy reserves stays within a certain range.
The sub-groups of insurance products of DL are:
i) individual life insurance and annuities,
i) non-participating single premium whole life insurance (without duty of medical disclosure),
i) financial insurance and annuities, and
iv) group annuities,
with the exception of certain types.
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The sub-groups of insurance products of the subsidiary of DL are:

Year ended March 31, 2013 Year ended March 31, 2014

i) individual life insurance and individual annuity i) individual life insurance and individual annuity
(yen-denominated, short-term), (yen-denominated, short-term),

i) individual life insurance and individual annuity i) individual life insurance and individual annuity
(U.S. dollar-denominated), and (yen-denominated, long-term),

iii) individual life insurance and individual annuity i) individual life insurance and individual annuity
(Australian dollar-denominated), (U.S. dollar-denominated), and
with the exception of certain types and contracts. iv) individual life insurance and individual annuity

(Australian dollar-denominated),
with the exception of certain types and contracts.

(3) Addition of Sub-groups
Effective the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, in order to conduct appropriate duration control, taking into account
the duration of liabilities to promote more sophisticated ALM, a certain subsidiary of DL added individual life
insurance and individual annuity (yen-denominated, long-term) as a new sub-group. This addition did not have any
impact on profits and losses of DL and the subsidiary.

4. Stocks of Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies
The amounts of stocks of and stakes in non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies DL held were as
follows:

As of March 31,

2013 2014 2014
R (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
72,989 98,916 961
3,990 40,026 388
76,980 138,942 1,350

5. Problem Loans
The amounts of credits to bankrupt borrowers, delinquent loans, loans past due for three months or more, and
restructured loans, which were included in loans, were as follows:

As of March 31,

2013 2014 2014

. - Unit: million

(Unit: million yen) (US dollars)
Credits to bankrupt bOrrowWers .........cccoecveeiicien e 4,132 4,329 42
(D= [T oo 01T o) o= T R 4,679 4,463 43
Loans past due for three months or more.........ccccocoviiiiniiiiinincene - - -
ReStrUCIUred [0ANS ...ceeveeeieeieee e 926 35 0
B[] 2= | SRR PRRP 9,738 8,828 85

Credits to bankrupt borrowers represent non-accrual loans, excluding the balances already written off, which meet
the conditions prescribed in Article 96, Paragraph 1, Iltem 3 and 4 of the Enforcement Ordinance of the Corporation
Tax Act. Interest accruals of such loans are suspended since the principal of or interest on such loans is unlikely to be
collected.

Delinquent loans are credits that are delinquent other than credits to bankrupt borrowers and loans for which
interest payments have been suspended to assist and support the borrowers in the restructuring of their businesses.

Loans past due for three months or more are loans for which interest or principal payments are delinquent for three
months or more under the terms of the loans excluding those classified as credits to bankrupt borrowers or delinquent
loans.

Restructured loans are loans for which certain concessions favorable to borrowers, such as interest reductions or
exemptions, postponement of principal or interest payments, release from repayment or other agreements have been
negotiated for the purpose of assisting and supporting the borrowers in the restructuring of their businesses. This
category excludes loans classified as credits to bankrupt borrowers, delinquent loans, and loans past due for three
months or more.
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As a result of the direct write-off of loans, decreases in credits to bankrupt borrowers and delinquent loans were as
follows:

As of March 31,

2013 2014 2014
R (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Credits to bankrupt bOImOWErS ..........coceiiiiinieiiee e 407 6 0
DeliNQUENT IOANS.......uiiiiii it e e e e snneeees 65 60 0
6. Commitment Line
As of March 31, 2013 and 2014, there were unused commitment line agreements under which DL is the lender of
¥25,041 million and ¥27,767 million (US$269 million), respectively.
7. Accumulated Depreciation of Tangible Fixed Assets
Accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed assets as of March 31, 2013 and 2014 were ¥627,365 million and
¥638,112 million (US$6,200 million), respectively.
8. Assets and Liabilities Held in Separate Accounts
The total amounts of assets held in separate accounts defined in Article 118, Paragraph 1 of the Insurance Business
Act as of March 31, 2013 and 2014 were ¥2,788,994 million and ¥3,052,249 million (US$29,656 million), respectively.
Separate account liabilities were the same amount as the separate account assets.
9. Reinsurance
As of March 31, 2013 and 2014, reserves for outstanding claims for reinsured parts defined in Article 71, Paragraph
1 of the Enforcement Regulations of the Insurance Business Act, which is referred to in Article 73, Paragraph 3 of the
Regulations were ¥12 million and ¥5 million (US$0 million), respectively.
As of March 31, 2013 and 2014, the amounts of policy reserves provided for reinsured parts defined in Article 71,
Paragraph 1 of the Regulations were ¥8,236 million and ¥12,262 million (US$119 million), respectively.
10. Changes in Reserve for Policyholder Dividends
Changes in reserve for policyholder dividends were as follows:
Year ended March 31,
2013 2014 2014
N (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Balance at the beginning of the year..........ccccoo i 387,871 392,761 3,816
Dividends paid during the year...........cccoeviriiiiieiiec s (90,280) (101,686) (988)
Interest accrual during the year...........ccccvo e 9,170 8,946 86
Provision for reserve for policyholder dividends .........cccccceveiieeenennn. 86,000 94,000 913
Balance at the end of the year 392,761 394,022 3,828

11.

12.

Obligations to the Life Insurance Policyholders Protection Corporation of Japan

The estimated future obligations of DL and its subsidiaries that operate a life insurance business in Japan to the Life
Insurance Policyholders Protection Corporation of Japan under Article 259 of the Insurance Business Act as of March
31,2013 and 2014 were ¥58,654 million and ¥55,825 million (US$542 million), respectively. These obligations will be
recognized as operating expenses in the years in which they are paid.

Revaluation of Land
Based on the “Law for Revaluation of Land” (Publicly Issued Law 34, March 31, 1998), DL revalued land for business
use. The difference between the fair value and book value resulting from the revaluation, net of related deferred taxes,
is recorded as a reserve for land revaluation as a separate component of net assets and the related deferred tax
liability is recorded as deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation.
e Date of revaluation: March 31, 2001
¢ Method stipulated in Article 3 Paragraph 3 of the Law for Revaluation of Land:
The fair value was determined based on the appraisal value publicly announced for tax assessment purposes with
certain reasonable adjustments in accordance with Article 2-1 and 2-4 of the Enforcement Ordinance of the Law for
Revaluation of Land (Publicly Issue Cabinet Order 119, March 31, 1998).
* The excess of the new book value of the land over the fair value after revaluation in accordance with Article 10
of the Law for Revaluation of Land was ¥31,044 million as of March 31, 2013, which included ¥8,883 million
attributable to real estate for rent, and ¥20,257 million (US$196 million) as of March 31, 2014, which included
¥2,032 million (US$19 million) attributable to real estate for rent.
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13. Subordinated Bonds
Subordinated bonds of ¥154,584 million and ¥107,562 million (US$1,045 million) shown in liabilities as of March 31,
2013 and 2014 included foreign currency-denominated subordinated bonds, the repayment of which is subordinated
to other obligations.

Issuance Balance as of Balance as of Interest Maturity
Issuer Description date April 1, 2013 March 31, 2014 rate (%) Collateral date

(Unit: million yen)

Foreign currency (US

March 17 47,022 March 17

DL dollar) denominated ’ > - 5.73 None ’
subordinated bonds 2004 (499 mil USS] 2014
Foreign currency (US
dollar) denominated March 15, 107,562 107,562

DL Derpetual subordinated 2011 [1,300 mil US$]  [1,300 mil US$] 7:25 None  Perpetual

bonds
Total - - 154,584 107,562 - - -

Note: The figures in parentheses represent the principle amount in US dollars.

14. Subordinated Debt

As of March 31, 2013 and 2014, other liabilities included subordinated debt of ¥350,000 million and ¥320,000 million
(US$3,109 million), respectively, the repayment of which is subordinated to other obligations.

B e omt niompgg My e o e
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)
Current portions of long-term
DOMTOWINGS «.v.cevveveveeveeceerieeeeeeans 30,001 1 5.2 - 291 0
Current portions of lease obligations... 1,679 1,642 - - 16 15
Long-term borrowings September 2015 -
(excluding current portion)........ 350,905 348,334 2.7 perpetual 3,409 3,384
Lease obligations April 2015 -
(excluding current portion)........ 5,878 4,385 - January 2019 57 42
Total..eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 388,465 354,362 - - 3,774 3,443

Note: 1. Those borrowings and lease obligations above are included in the “other liabilities” on the consolidated balance sheet.
2. The average interest rate represents the weighted-average rate applicable to the balance as of March 31, 2014. As for lease obligations, description is
omitted since interest method is applied.
3. The following table shows the maturities of long-term borrowings (excluding the current portion or those without maturities) and lease obligations
(excluding the current portion) for the 5 years subsequent to March 31, 2014:

Due after one year Due after two years Due after three years Due after four years
through two years through three years through four years through five years
(Unit: million yen)
Long-term borrowings............. 21,275 0 0 0
Lease obligations ........c...c..c..... 1,487 1,253 1,225 418
Due after one year Due after two years Due after three years Due after four years
through two years through three years through four years through five years
(Unit: million US dollars)
Long-term borrowings.............. 206 0 0 0
Lease obligations ............c.c..... 14 12 11 4

15. Securities Borrowing

Securities borrowed under borrowing agreements and securities received as collateral of reinsurance transactions can
be sold or pledged as collateral. As of March 31, 2013 and 2014, the market value of the securities borrowed which
were not sold or pledged as collateral was ¥9,644 million and ¥43,418 million (US$421 million), respectively.

16. Organizational Change Surplus
As of March 31, 2013 and 2014, the amounts of DL’s organizational change surplus stipulated in Article 91 of the
Insurance Business Act were ¥117,776 million and ¥117,776 million (US$1,144 million), respectively.
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1. Operating Expenses
Details of operating expenses for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2014 were as follows:

Year ended March 31,

2013 2014 2014

(Unit: million

(Unit: million yen) US dollars)

Sales aCtiVity EXPENSES ..c.cuuiiiiiiieeeiiiee e 202,657 229,549 2,230
Sales Management EXPENSES .......cccuercveeriirnrienreesie et e 70,947 72,984 709
General management EXPENSES. .......ouvueirurereeriieerieesreeseeeaeeseesseeenas 212,814 215,032 2,089

2. Gains on Disposal of Fixed Assets
Details of gains on disposal of fixed assets for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2014 were as follows:

Year ended March 31,

2013 2014 2014

(Unit: million

(Unit: million yen) US dollars)

LaNG .. s 3,265 3,373 32
BUIIAINGS ...t e 5,609 237 2
Other tangible fixed assets..........cccoooiiiiiiiiiii e, 4 5 0
Other intangible fixed @ssets........cccooiviieiiiiiiiiice e - 8 0

L0 L OO 8,880 3,624 35

3. Losses on Disposal of Fixed Assets
Details of losses on disposal of fixed assets for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2014 were as follows:

Year ended March 31,

2013 2014 2014

R Unit: million

(Unit: million yen) (US dollars)
(=T oo LSRR 3,976 8,008 77
BUIINGS .ttt 837 5,333 51
Leased aSSELS ..ouuiiiiiiii e 1 1 0
Other tangible fixed @ssets........ccveriiiiiiiiiieeee e 295 40 0
SOFIWAIE ..ttt et 110 65 0
Other intangible fixed assets........ccccviiiiiiiieiriee e 581 299 2
Other @SSEES ....ueiiiieeiieee et 546 141 1
o] - PSRRI 6,350 13,890 134
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4. Impairment Losses on Fixed Assets
Details of impairment losses on fixed assets for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2014 were as follows:

a) Method of Grouping Assets
Real estate and other assets used for insurance business purposes are recognized as one asset group. Each
property for rent and property not in use, which is not used for insurance business purposes, is deemed to be an
independent asset group.

b) Background for Recognition of Impairment Losses
As a result of significant declines in profitability or market value of some asset groups, DL wrote down the book
value of these assets to the recoverable value, and reported such write-off as impairment losses in extraordinary
losses.

c) Breakdown of Impairment Losses
Impairment losses by asset group for the year ended March 31, 2013 were as follows:

Asset Group Place Number Impairment Losses

Land Leasehold
Land Rights Buildings Total

(Unit: million yen)

Real estate Fujisawa City, Kanagawa
for rent Prefecture and others 2 125 501 687 1,315
Real est.ate Nagoya City, Aichi Prefecture 42 1437 _ 375 1,813
not in use and others
Total 44 1,563 501 1,063 3,128

Impairment losses by asset group for the year ended March 31, 2014 were as follows:

Asset Group Place Number Impairment Losses
Land Land
Leasehold Leasehold
Land Rights  Buildings Total Land Rights  Buildings  Total
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)
Real estate Shinjuku-Ku, Tokyoand 5 05 g495 6,154 15332 26 63 59 148
for rent others
Real estate Okayama City, Okayama
not in Prefecture and 28 3,461 2,718 2,378 8,557 33 26 23 83
use others
Total 30 6,144 9,213 8,632 23,890 59 89 82 232

d) Calculation of Recoverable Value
Value in use or net sale value is used as the recoverable value of real estate for rent, and net sale value is used
as the recoverable value of real estate not in use. Discount rates of 2.73% and 2.66% for the years ended March
31, 2013 and 2014, respectively, were applied for discounting future cash flows in the calculation of value in use.
Estimated disposal value, appraisal value based on real estate appraisal standards, or appraisal value based on
publicly assessed land value for tax purposes is used as the net sale value.
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The amount reclassified and tax effect amounts related to other comprehensive income were as follows:
Year ended March 31,

2013 2014 2014
R Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) (US dollars)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net of tax
Amount incurred during the year..........cccoeoviiieeiiiee e 1,006,123 468,991 4,556
Amount reclassified.......cccerviiiiiiii s (117,516) (145,882) (1,417)
Before tax adjustment .........cccceeveieeecciee e 888,607 323,109 3,139
Tax effect (272,706) (99,031) (962)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net of tax......... 615,900 224,078 2177
Deferred hedge gains (losses)
Amount incurred during the year.........cccccoveiniiiiecnicnieeee (2,352) (2,435) (23)
Amount reclassified.......ccccceeeeiee e (190) (143) 1)
Amount adjusted for asset acquisition cost..........cccccceerieeenn. - 1,437 13
Before tax adjustment ..........cccceveiieciie e (2,542) (1,141) (11)
TaX €ffECT .. 784 356 3
Deferred hedge gains (I0SSES) ......cccoecveriiirieeriieiieceeces (1,757) (784) (7)
Reserve for land revaluation
Amount incurred during the year........ccccoovvvciieeeiiiiiiiiieeeen e - - -
Amount reclassified ..o - - -
Before tax adjustment - - -
TaX €ffECt e 97) (269) (2
Reserve for land revaluation............ccccceeevnieriinniinieeeiees 97) (269) (2
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Amount incurred during the year..........ccccooviiiiiiiiiniieeeeeee 23,904 (4,131) (40)
Amount reclassified..........cccccuee... - - -
Before tax adjustment 23,904 (4,131) (40)
TaX €ffECt c.uveiiiiie e - - -
Foreign currency translation adjustments .............cccceeeens 23,904 (4,131) (40)
Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries and affiliates
accounted for under the equity method
Amount incurred during the year..........ccccoevveiiicieiiicieniieee 3,254 5,136 49
Amount reclassified.........ccoeeiiie e (113) (104) 1)
Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries and
affiliates accounted for under the equity method ......... 3,141 5,031 48
Total other comprehensive income........ccccoceviiureiiiinenne 641,091 223,924 2,175
1. For the Year Ended March 31, 2013
(1) Type and Number of Shares Outstanding
Year ended March 31, 2013
At the beginning  Increase during  Decrease during At the end
of the year the year the year of the year
(Unit: thousands of shares)
Common stock (V... ..o 10,000 0 - 10,000
Treasury Stock @ .......cooveeiireeereeee e 113 - 22 90

(*1) The increase of common stock that rounded to 0 thousand shares represents the exercise of stock acquisition rights.

(*2) The decrease of 22 thousand shares of treasury stock represents the sum of a) shares granted to eligible employees at retirement by the J-ESOP under DL’s
incentive program granting middle management the purchased shares and b) shares sold to the Dai-ichi Life Insurance Employee Stock Holding Partnership by
the Trust Fund for Dai-ichi Life Insurance Employee Stock Holding Partnership under the E-Ship®.

(2) Stock Acquisition Rights

Balance as of March 31, 2013

Issuer Details (Unit: million yen)

DL Stock acquisition rights in the form of stock options 379
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(3) Dividends on Common Stocks

a) Dividends paid during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013

Date of resolution June 25, 2012 (at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders)
Type of shares Common stock

Total dividends ) ¥15,818 million

Dividends per share ¥1,600

Record date March 31, 2012

Effective date June 26, 2012

Dividend resource Retained earnings

(*) Total dividends did not include ¥181 million of dividends to the J-ESOP trust and the E-ship trust, as DL recognized the shares held by those
trusts as treasury shares.

b) Dividends, the record date of which was March 31, 2013, to be paid out in the year ending March 31, 2014

Date of resolution June 24, 2013 (at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to be held)
Type of shares Common stock

Total dividends © ¥15,855 million

Dividends per share ¥1,600

Record date March 31, 2013

Effective date June 25, 2013

Dividend resource Retained earnings

(*) Total dividends did not include ¥145 million of dividends to the J-ESOP trust and the E-ship trust, as DL recognized the shares held by those
trusts as treasury shares.

2. For the Year Ended March 31, 2014

(1) Type and Number of Shares Outstanding
Year ended March 31, 2014

At the beginning  Increase during  Decrease during At the end
of the year the year the year of the year
(Unit: thousands of shares)
Common stock ?..... " 10,000 990,059 - 1,000,060
Treasury stock (34 90 8,255 602 7,743

(1) The Company conducted a 1:100 share split on October 1, 2013.

(*2) The increase of 990,059 thousand shares of common stock represents the sum of a) the exercise of stock acquisition rights of 0 thousand shares and b) the
stock split 990,059 thousand shares.

(*3) The increase of 8,255 thousand shares of treasury stock represents the stock split.

(*4) The decrease of 602 thousand shares of treasury stock represents the sum of a) shares granted to eligible employees at retirement by the J-ESOP under DL’s
incentive program granting middle management the purchased shares and b) shares sold to the Dai-ichi Life Insurance Employee Stock Holding Partnership by
the Trust Fund for Dai-ichi Life Insurance Employee Stock Holding Partnership under the E-Ship®.

(2) Stock Acquisition Rights

Balance as of March 31, 2014

Issuer Details (Unit: million yen)

DL Stock acquisition rights in the form of stock options 583 (US$5 million)

(3) Dividends on Common Stocks

a) Dividends paid during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014

Date of resolution June 24, 2013 (at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders)
Type of shares Common stock

Total dividends © ¥15,855 million (US$154 million)

Dividends per share ¥1,600 (US$15.54)

Record date March 31, 2013

Effective date June 25, 2013

Dividend resource Retained earnings

(*) Total dividends did not include ¥145 million (US$1 million) of dividends to the J-ESOP trust and the E-ship trust, as DL recognized the shares
held by those trusts as treasury shares.
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b) Dividends, the record date of which was March 31, 2014, to be paid out in the year ending March 31, 2015

Date of resolution
Type of shares

Total dividends "
Dividends per share (2
Record date

Effective date
Dividend resource

June 24, 2014 (at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to be held)
Common stock

¥19,846 million (US$192 million)

¥20 (US$0.19)

March 31, 2014

June 25, 2014

Retained earnings

(*1) Total dividends did not include ¥154 million (US$1 million) of dividends to the J-ESOP trust and the E-ship trust, as DL recognized the shares

held by those trusts as treasury shares.

(*2) The Company conducted a 1:100 share split on October 1, 2013. The dividend per share reflects the share split.

Reconciliations of cash and cash equivalents to balance sheet accounts as of March 31, 2013 and 2014 were as follows:

As of March 31,

2014 2014
R (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Cash and cash depositS.......cccccuieeriiieeciiee e 698,594 6,787
(7111 T Y= 1o = SRS 362,800 3,525
Cash and cash equivalents .........ccceeceeeeecceereccceee e 1,061,394 10,312

1. Finance Leases (As lessee)

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013 and 2014, information regarding finance leases (as lessee) is omitted due to

the importance on the consolidated financial statements.

2. Operating Leases (As lessee)

Future minimum lease payments under noncancellable operating leases as of March 31, 2013 and 2014 were as follows:

As of March 31,

2014 2014
G (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Due Within ONE Y AT ....cciii it 2,239 21
DUE after ONE YA .......eviiceieeeeee ettt 17,992 174
o) = SRR 20,232 196
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1.

Financial Instruments

(1) Policies in Utilizing Financial Instrument

In an effort to manage our investment assets in a manner appropriate to our liabilities which arise from the
insurance policies we underwrite, we engage in asset liability management, or ALM, which considers the long-term
balance between assets and liabilities to ensure stable returns. With this strategy, DL and certain of its consolidated
subsidiaries hold fixed income investments, including bonds and loans, as the core of their asset portfolio. While
placing its financial soundness first, DL also holds stocks and foreign securities within its tolerable risk to enhance
its profitability and facilitate diversification of investment risks.

DL and certain of its consolidated subsidiaries use derivatives primarily to hedge market risks associated with
their existing asset portfolio and supplement our investment objectives, taking into account the exposure of
underlying assets. Moreover, they utilize derivatives to mitigate the risks associated with guaranteed minimum
maturity benefits of individual variable annuity insurance.

With respect to financing, DL has raised capital directly from the capital markets by issuing subordinated
bonds and securitizing subordinated loans as well as indirectly from banks in order to strengthen its capital base
and to invest such capital in growing areas. To avoid impact from interest-rate fluctuations, DL utilizes derivative
transactions in hedging some of such financial liabilities and adopts hedge accounting.

(2) Financial Instruments Used and Their Risks

Securities included in financial assets of DL and certain of its consolidated subsidiaries, mainly stocks and bonds,
are categorized by their investment objectives such as held-to-maturity, policy-reserve-matching and available-
for-sale. Those securities are exposed to market fluctuation risk, credit risk, and interest-rate risk and some of

the securities denominated in foreign currency are exposed to foreign currency risk. Also, loans are exposed to
credit risk arising from the defaults of obligors. DL and certain of its consolidated subsidiaries might be exposed to
liquidity risk in certain circumstance in which they cannot access the financial market and make timely payments of
principal, interest or other amounts. Also, some of their loans payable and bonds payable which are floating interest
rate based and denominated in foreign currency are exposed to interest-rate risk and foreign currency risk.

They utilize interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate risk associated with certain of their loans receivable and
payable and adopt hedge accounting.

In addition, they utilize a) equity forward contracts to hedge market fluctuation risks associated with domestic
stocks, and b) foreign currency forward contracts, currency options and foreign currency swaps to hedge foreign
currency risks associated with certain foreign currency-denominated bonds, foreign currency-denominated short-
term deposits and foreign currency-denominated debts, etc. and adopt hedge accounting.

In applying the hedge accounting, in order to fulfill requirements stipulated in the “Accounting Standards for
Financial Instruments” (ASBJ Statement No. 10 issued on March 10, 2008), DL and certain of its consolidated
subsidiaries have established investment policy and procedure guidelines and clarified the risk of underlying assets
to be hedged and derivative instruments to be used, and conducted pre- and post-effectiveness tests of the
transactions.

(3) Risk Management

The risk management system of DL and certain of its domestic consolidated subsidiaries is as follows:

a) Market risk management
Under the internal investment policy and market risk management policy, they manage market risk by conducting
mid- to long-term asset allocation in a manner appropriate to their liabilities. Therefore, they categorize their
portfolio into sub-groups, based on their investment purpose, and manage them taking into account each of their
risk characteristics.
i) Interest rate risk
They keep track of interest rates and durations of their assets and liabilities, monitor their internal analyses on
duration gap and interest rate sensitivity, and periodically report their findings to their board of directors, etc.
iy Currency risk
They keep track of currency composition of their financial assets and liabilities, conduct sensitivity analyses,
and periodically report their findings to their board of directors, etc.
iii) Fluctuation in market values
They define risk management policies for each component of their overall portfolio, including securities, and
specific risk management procedures. In such policies and procedures, they set and manage upper limits of
each asset balance and risk exposure.
Such management conditions are periodically reported by their risk management sections to their board of
directors, etc.
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iv) Derivative transactions
For derivative transactions, they have established internal check system by segregating (a) executing
department, (b) the department which engages in assessment of hedge effectiveness, and (c) the back-office.
Additionally, in order to limit speculative use of derivatives, they have put restrictions on utilization purpose,
such as hedging, and establish position limits for each asset class.

They also utilize derivatives in order to reduce the risk associated with guaranteed minimum maturity
benefits of individual variable annuities. In accordance with their internal regulations to manage the risks
associated with their guaranteed minimum maturity benefits, they (a) assess hedge effectiveness of derivative
transactions, (b) manage gains and losses from derivative transactions on a daily basis, and (c) periodically
check their progress on reducing the risk associated with their guaranteed minimum maturity benefits and
measure estimated losses based on VaR (value-at-risk).

The risk management sections are in charge of managing overall risks including risks associated with their
guaranteed minimum maturity benefits, and periodically report the status of such management to their board of
directors, etc.

b) Credit Risk Management
In accordance with the internal investment policy and credit risk management procedure guidelines, they have
established a credit management system related to loans, such as preliminary reviews on individual transactions,
credit limit setting, credit information management, internal credit rating, attachment of guarantees and collateral,
and follow-ups on problem loans. For corporate bond investment, the credit section sets investment caps on
individual issuers taking into account internal credit ratings and other factors. Excessive risk taking is restricted
since front offices make investment within those caps. That credit management has been conducted by the credit
and risk management sections, and has been periodically reported to their board of directors, etc. Additionally,
the internal audit section has also checked credit management status.

Credit risk of security issuers and counterparty risk with respect to derivative transactions are managed by the
credit section, which sets upper limits for each counterparty and financial instrument and periodically monitors
credit information, and by the risk management section, which periodically monitors current exposures.

In each of certain overseas consolidated subsidiaries, an investment committee established by their board of
directors develops its investment policy, and periodically checks the compliance and the status of each risk, thus
enabling the subsidiaries to manage their risks in conformity with the risk characteristics.

(4) Supplementary Explanation for Fair Value of Financial Instruments
As well as the values based on market prices, fair value of financial instruments includes values which are
reasonably calculated in case market prices do not exist. As the calculation of those values adopts certain
assumptions, those values may vary in case different assumptions are applied. Also, for the contract value
regarding derivative transactions described in “Fair Value of Financial Instruments”, the contract value itself does
not indicate market risk related to derivative transactions.
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2. Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying amount on the consolidated balance sheet, fair value and differences between carrying amount and fair
value as of March 31, 2013 and 2014 were as follows.

The following tables do not include financial instruments whose fair value is extremely difficult to recognize (please

refer to Note 2).

As of March 31, 2013

Carrying amount Fair value

Gains (losses)

(Unit: million yen)

(1) Cash and depPOSItS.....cueeeeeierrvrrrereeeeeierreeeeeeescereeeeeeeeeeaens 457,517 457,534 17
(2) Call I0ANS .....oeiiiiiieieee e 391,200 391,200 -
(3) Monetary claims bought...........cceeeeeeecceieeeeeeesreeeee e 285,082 285,082 -
(4) Money held in trust ......couei i 56,251 56,251 -
(5) Securities
a. Trading SECUMLIES ..ceeeovereeeriieeiieeeeeee e e 2,906,496 2,906,496 -
b. Held-to-maturity bonds 142,267 147,965 5,698
c. Policy-reserve-matching bonds.........cccccuvevereericnneeeenenn. 10,794,851 12,005,334 1,210,483
d. Stocks of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.............. 29,768 34,541 4,773
e. Available-for-sale Securities..........cuuueeeiieieeeieeeeeeeeeeens 14,409,040 14,409,040 -
(B) LOBNS ..ttt s e e 3,140,990
Reserves for possible loan 10sses ®V.......cccceeeveeerceeeeerenenn. (8,172)
3,137,817 3,262,315 124,497
TOtAl @SSELS ..uuuuuriuiiiiiire e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e n e e e a e e e e 32,610,293 33,955,763 1,345,470
(1) BONdS payable..........ueeeeieiieiiiiieee e 154,584 170,107 15,522
(2) LONG-term DOrMOWINGS....ccuvreerireeeriereeesareeeesneeeesneeesenneesenns 380,907 377,110 (3,796)
Total abilItiES ....cceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 535,491 547,218 11,726
Derivative transactions *?
a. Hedge accounting not applied [16,818] [16,818] -
b. Hedge accounting applied ...........ccccerveeeiiiiiniiieenceee [161,207] [160,279] 928
Total derivative transactions ...........ccceeeeveeeeerceeeesseeessieneens [178,025] [177,097] 928
(*1) Excluding general reserves for possible loan losses and specific reserves for possible loan losses related to loans.
(*2) Credits/debts from derivative transactions are presented on a net basis. Figures in [ ] are net debts.
As of March 31, 2014
Carrying Gains Carrying Gains
amount Fair value (losses) amount Fairvalue (losses)
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)
(1) Cash and deposits.......cceeeeeecereeeeeeernnns 698,594 698,606 12 6,787 6,787 0
(2) Call 10aNS ....eeeeeeeieeeieeeeeee e 362,800 362,800 - 3,525 3,525 -
(3) Monetary claims bought..........ccccceeennee 281,859 281,859 - 2,738 2,738 -
(4) Money held in trust .........ccceevceeeniiennnne 66,400 66,400 - 645 645 -
(5) Securities
a. Trading SECUIities ........ccceeevueeeeneeenn. 3,170,435 3,170,435 - 30,804 30,804 -
b. Held-to-maturity bonds ................... 45,109 48,862 3,753 438 474 36
c. Policy-reserve-matching bonds........ 12,461,047 13,539,746 1,078,698 121,075 131,556 10,480
d. Stocks of subsidiaries and affiliated
COMPANIES ...eeevrreeeeereerereeeeaaeenn 37,348 44,116 6,768 362 428 65
e. Available-for-sale securities............. 14,408,024 14,408,024 - 139,992 139,992 -
. 3,024,702 29,388
Reserves for possible loan losses *.... (1,846) (17)
3,022,855 3,136,544 113,688 29,370 30,475 1,104
Total assetS.....ccoveeeeeeeeciiieeeeee e 34,554,474 35,757,395 1,202,920 335,741 347,429 11,687
(1) Bonds payable.......cccveeeeeeeicueneeenneenennns 107,562 127,995 20,433 1,045 1,243 198
(2) Long-term borrowings.. 348,335 353,867 5,531 3,384 3,438 53
Total liabilities .....cccvvveeeeeeieceeeeeeeeeeene 455,897 481,862 25,965 4,429 4,681 252
Derivative transactions *?
a. Hedge accounting not applied.......... 2,904 2,904 - 28 28 -
b. Hedge accounting applied ............... [51,825] [61,315] 509 [503] [498] 4
Total derivative transactions ................ [48,921] [48,411] 509 [475] [470] 4

(*1) Excluding general reserves for possible loan losses and specific reserves for possible loan losses related to loans.
(*2) Credits/debts from derivative transactions are presented on a net basis. Figures in[ ] are net debts.
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Note 1: Notes to Methods for Calculating Fair Value of Financial Instruments, Securities and Derivative Transactions

Assets

(1) Cash and deposits
As for deposits with maturities, except for those which are close to maturity, present value is calculated by
discounting the carrying amount for each segment based on the term, using a deposit interest rate which is
assumed to be applied to new deposit. As for deposits close to maturity and deposits without maturity, fair value is
based on the carrying amount since fair value is close to the carrying amount.

(2) Call loans
Since all call loans are close to due date and their fair value is close to carrying amounts, fair value of call loans is
based on their carrying amount.

(8) Monetary claims bought
Fair value of monetary claims bought is based on the reasonably calculated price.

(4) Money held in trust
The fair value of stocks is based on the price on stock exchanges and that of bonds is based on the price on bond
markets or price presented by counterparty financial institutions. The fair value of mutual funds is based on unit price.

For details on derivative transactions of money held in trust, please refer to XIl. DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS.

(5) Securities
The fair value of stocks is based on the price on stock exchanges and that of bonds is based on the price on bond
markets or price presented by counterparty financial institutions. The fair value of mutual funds is based on unit
price. As for ownership stakes in partnerships, the amount equivalent to partnership interest in fair value of the
partnership assets is recorded as fair value of the stake in the partnership. Additionally, notes for the securities for
each investment purpose are described in X. SECURITIES.

(6) Loans
The fair value of loans is calculated by discounting future cash flows of the subject loan, using interest rates
corresponding to the internal credit rating and remaining period which are assumed to be applied to new loans to
the subject borrower.

Additionally, for risk-monitored loans, reserve for possible loan losses is calculated based on the present value
of estimated future cash flows or the amount deemed recoverable from collateral and guarantees and the fair value
is close to the carrying amount on the balance sheet minus reserve for possible loan losses at the end of the fiscal
year. Therefore, that amount (the carrying amount on the balance sheet minus reserve for possible loan losses) is
recorded as the fair value of risk-monitored loans.

Also, loans without a due date because of their characteristics that their exposure is limited to the amount of their
collaterals, are deemed to have fair value close to book value, taking into account estimated repayment period and
interest rates. Therefore, their book value is recorded as the fair value.

Liabilities

(1) Bonds payable (subordinated bonds)
The fair value of bonds issued by DL is based on the price on the bond market.

(2) Long-term borrowings
The fair value of long-term borrowings is calculated by discounting future cash flows, using interest rates
corresponding to internal credit rating and remaining periods which are assumed to be applied to new borrowing.
Also, certain of long-term borrowings are deemed to have fair value close to book value, taking into account interest
rates. Therefore, their book value is recorded as the fair value.

Derivative Instruments
For details on derivative transactions, please refer to Xll. DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS.

Note 2: Financial instruments whose fair value is extremely difficult to recognize are as follows and are not
included in the fair value of (5) Securities in Note 1
As of March 31,
2013 2014 2014
Carrying amount

o (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
1. Unlisted domestic stocks *2 ..o 156,513 156,509 1,520
2. Unlisted foreign stocks N2 ... ..o 18,208 31,046 301
3. Other foreign securities *1*2) ., . 846,824 798,089 7,754
4. Other seCUrities *NM2 .. i e e e e eree e 86,992 95,972 932
L= 1,108,539 1,081,617 10,509

(*1) These securities cannot be assigned a market value because of unavailability of tradable markets, and they are excluded from disclosure of market value

information.
(*2) DL recorded impairment charges of ¥79 million for the year ended March 31, 2013 and ¥5 million (US$ O million) for the year ended March 31, 2014.
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Note 3: Scheduled redemptions of monetary claims and securities with maturities

As of March 31, 2013

Duein 1 year Due after 1 year Due after 5 years Due after
orless through 5 years through 10 years 10 years
(Unit: million yen)
Cash and dEPOSItS ......uuvreereeriiiiiieee e e e 457,317 - 200 -
(0711 (o =T g 1= 391,200 - - -
Monetary claims BOUght ........coecueiiriieeeee e - 15,205 - 252,825
Securities:

Held-to-maturity bonds (DONdS) .......cceecveereeeeieiiiieieeee e ceeees 50,400 - - 47,900
Held-to-maturity bonds (foreign securities)............cccevriineninns 47,025 - - -
Policy-reserve-matching bonds (bonds) ........coeeeeeeeeeeereeiicnennns 136,948 565,330 253,637 9,647,065
Policy-reserve-matching bonds (foreign securities).................. - 32,162 132,770 3,231
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (bonds)................. 438,773 1,581,922 1,276,565 2,279,645
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (foreign securities) .. 67,446 1,900,757 1,248,028 1,725,624
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (other securities) ... 4,653 54,200 26,378 21,993
(1o = I SR 329,587 1,088,960 735,600 478,220

(*) Loans for which interest or principal payments cannot be forecasted, such as credit to bankrupt obligors, substantially bankrupt obligors and obligors at risk of
bankruptcy, amounted to ¥6,615 million were not included. Also, ¥501,548 million of loans without maturities were not included.

As of March 31, 2014

Duein 1 year Due after 1 year Due after 5 years Due after
or less through 5 years through 10 years 10 years
(Unit: million yen)
Cash and dEPOSItS ...ocuuerreeeeeiiiriirieeee e e e seeeeees 698,394 200 - -
(0= 11 18T Y=o 362,800 - - -
Monetary claims bought ... - 23,585 - 244,561
Money held in trust ®) ... ..o - 2,730 - -
Securities:
Held-to-maturity bonds (DONdS) ......cceeeeveereeeeiiiiiiiieeer e e - - 47,900 -
Policy-reserve-matching bonds (bonds) ..........ccceeveeeerieriinenes 317,982 342,117 450,759 10,884,519
Policy-reserve-matching bonds (foreign securities).................. 300 55,175 274173 107,557
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (bonds)................. 390,398 1,260,570 701,335 1,992,102
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (foreign securities) .. 183,597 2,031,333 1,511,424 2,010,915
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (other securities) ... 236 70,353 89,810 210
(o= T USSR 255,599 1,028,760 754,427 514,774
As of March 31, 2014
Due in 1 year Due after 1 year Due after 5 years Due after
or less through 5 years through 10 years 10 years
(Unit: million US dollars)
(07T o JF- TaTo e =Y oo 1= | SRR 6,785 1 - -
(O7= 1118 [ Y-V o N 3,525 - - -
Monetary claims bought ..........eeeveiiiiiiiiiiieee e - 229 - 2,376
Money held in trust ®) ... ..o - 26 - -
Securities:

Held-to-maturity bonds (bonds)............. . - - 465 -
Policy-reserve-matching bonds (bonds) 3,089 3,324 4,379 105,757
Policy-reserve-matching bonds (foreign securities).................. 2 536 2,663 1,045
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (bonds)................. 3,793 12,248 6,814 19,355
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (foreign securities) .. 1,783 19,737 14,685 19,538
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (other securities) ... 2 683 872 2
(o= g TS PPN 2,483 9,995 7,330 5,001

(*1) Money held in trust without maturities amounted to ¥63,565 million was not included.

(*2) Loans for which interest or principal payments cannot be forecasted, such as credit to bankrupt obligors, substantially bankrupt obligors and obligors at risk
of bankruptcy, amounted to ¥6,266 million (US$ 60 million) were not included. Also, ¥464,467 million (US$ 4,512 million) of loans without maturities were not

included.
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Note 4: Scheduled maturities of bonds and long term borrowings

As of March 31, 2013

Duein 1 year Due after 1 year Due after 2 years Due after 3 years Due after 4 years Due after
or less through 2 years through 3 years through 4 years through 5 years 5 years
(Unit: million yen)
Bonds payable *"............... 47,025 - - - - -
Long term borrowings *2.... 30,001 1 21,888 0 0 0

(*1) ¥107,562 million of bonds payable without maturities were not included.
(*2) ¥329,014 million of long term borrowings without maturities were not included.

As of March 31, 2014

Duein 1 year Due after 1 year Due after 2 years Due after 3 years Due after 4 years Due after
or less through 2 years through 3 years through 4 years through 5 years 5 years
(Unit: million yen)
Long term borrowings ®..... 1 21,275 0 0 0 0
As of March 31, 2014
Duein 1 year or Due after 1 year Due after 2 years Due after 3 years Due after 4 years Due after
less through 2 years through 3 years through 4 years through 5 years 5 years
(Unit: million US dollars)
Long term borrowings ®..... 0 206 0 0 0 0

(*) ¥327,057 million (US$ 3,177 million) of long term borrowings without maturities were not included.

1. Trading Securities
As of March 31,

2013 2014 2014
(Unit: million yen) (ldgtag?lglrcs);
Gains (losses) on valuation of trading securities..........ccocceevceriennennne 315,317 118,922 1,155
2. Held-to-maturity Bonds
As of March 31, 2013
Carrying Market Unrealized
amount value gains (losses)
(Unit: million yen)
Held-to-maturity bonds with unrealized gains:
(1) BONAS ..o 95,131 99,341 4,210
a. Government bonds.........cc......... 95,131 99,341 4,210
(2) Foreign securities .........ccceveeeceeene 47,135 48,623 1,487
a. Foreign bonds.......ccccccceiniieennee 47,135 48,623 1,487
Total. .o 142,267 147,965 5,698
As of March 31, 2014
Carrying Market Unrealized Carrying Market Unrealized
amount value gains (losses) amount value gains (losses)
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)
Held-to-maturity bonds with unrealized gains:
(1) BONAS .. 45,109 48,862 3,753 438 474 36
a. Government bonds..........ccceeeee 45,109 48,862 3,753 438 474 36
(2) Foreign securities ... - - - - - -
a. Foreign bonds.......cccccccveviinnenns - - - - - -
Total...oooeeeeeeeeeieeeeee, 45,109 48,862 3,753 438 474 36
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3. Policy-reserve-matching Bonds

As of March 31, 2013

Carrying Market Unrealized
amount value gains (losses)

(Unit: million yen)
Policy-reserve-matching bonds with unrealized gains:

(1) Bonds ..ccceeeeeeereennne ... 10,609,565 11,817,208 1,207,642
a. Government bonds 10,040,231 11,223,444 1,183,212
b. Local government bonds........... 186,673 194,066 7,392
c. Corporate bonds.........ccceevueennee 382,660 399,697 17,036

(2) Foreign Securities......cccccevererueennn. 112,533 116,216 3,682
a. Foreign bonds........ccccceiiiieennee 112,533 116,216 3,682

Subtotal.....cccoeciiiiieieen 10,722,099 11,933,424 1,211,325
Policy-reserve-matching bonds with unrealized losses:
(1) BONAS .. 12,218 12,046 (171)
a. Government bonds..........cccc.... - - -
b. Local government bonds........... 201 201 (©)]
c. Corporate bonds........cccceeeueeennee 12,017 11,845 (171)
(2) Foreign Securities.. 60,533 59,863 (669)
a. Foreign bonds........ccccceeviieenne 60,533 59,863 (669)
Subtotal......cccceeiiiiieieeeeee 72,752 71,910 (841)
Total..ooeeeerceereene 10,794,851 12,005,334 1,210,483
As of March 31, 2014
Carrying Market Unrealized Carrying Market Unrealized
amount value gains (losses) amount value gains (losses)
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)

Policy-reserve-matching bonds with unrealized gains:

(1) BONAS ..o 11,926,910 13,003,053 1,076,142 115,885 126,341 10,456
a. Government bonds.......... .. 11,233,673 12,287,943 1,054,269 109,149 119,393 10,243
b. Local government bonds........... 138,689 144,601 5,912 1,347 1,404 57
c. Corporate bonds..........cceceeruennee 554,547 570,508 15,960 5,388 5,543 155

(2) Foreign securities .........cccveeeeieeene 343,307 347,758 4,450 3,335 3,378 43
a. Foreign bonds.......cccccccviniiennns 343,307 347,758 4,450 3,335 3,378 43

Subtotal.....ccceveiiiieeeeeeeen 12,270,218 13,350,811 1,080,593 119,220 129,720 10,499

Policy-reserve-matching bonds with unrealized losses:

(1) Bonds ..c.ceeevueeriennee. 95,679 95,447 (232) 929 927 )
a. Government bonds 70,510 70,479 (31) 685 684 0)
b. Local government bonds........... - - - - - -
c. Corporate bonds........ccccceeueennnee 25,169 24,967 (201) 244 242 (1)

(2) Foreign securities ........c.ccvveecenene 95,149 93,487 (1,661) 924 908 (16)
a. Foreign bonds 95,149 93,487 (1,661) 924 908 (16)

Subtotal.......cceceeiriieiiieceee, 190,829 188,934 (1,894) 1,854 1,835 (18)
Total..oooeieeeieereeeiees 12,461,047 13,539,746 1,078,698 121,075 131,556 10,480
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4. Available-for-sale Securities

As of March 31, 2013

Carrying
amount

Acquisition
cost

Unrealized
gains (losses)

(Unit: million yen)

Available-for-sale securities with unrealized gains:

(1) Bonds ..cceeveeeenienne ... 5,805,653 5,377,103 428,550
a. Government bonds 3,910,382 3,565,845 344,536
b. Local government bonds........... 112,261 106,992 5,269
c. Corporate bonds.........ccceevueennee 1,783,009 1,704,265 78,743

(2) Domestic StOCKS.......cceevueereerieeens 1,930,168 1,196,220 733,948

(3) Foreign securities .........ccceeeeeeeenne 5,389,343 4,847,380 541,963
a. Foreign bonds........cccceceeevvveinnnnne 4,932,803 4,469,456 463,346
b. Other foreign securities ............. 456,540 377,923 78,616

(4) Other securities ........cccevveeeereeenn. 421,434 379,921 41,513

Subtotal......ccceriiiiiieeee 13,546,600 11,800,625 1,745,975

Available-for-sale securities with unrealized losses:

(1) BONAS ..ot 227,149 231,317 (4,167)
a. Government bonds.......... 111,560 112,084 (524)
b. Local government bonds........... 102 103 0)
c. Corporate bonds........cccceeuueennne 115,486 119,128 (3,642)

(2) Domestic StOCKS......cveveeiueerereeenn. 320,107 410,668 (90,560)

(8) Foreign securities .........cceveeeueene 546,369 588,794 (42,424)
a. Foreign bonds........ccooceieiiene 399,680 425,932 (26,252)
b. Other foreign securities ............. 146,689 162,861 (16,172)

(4) Other securities .. . 88,894 91,914 (3,019)

Subtotal.....cccccveeveeeeieeeeeeee 1,182,521 1,322,694 (140,172)
Total...ooeeeieeeeeeeeeeeee, 14,729,122 13,123,319 1,605,803

Note: Figures in the above table include (1) certificates of deposit and (2) trust beneficiary rights, which were recorded as cash and deposits and monetary claims
bought on the consolidated balance sheet, respectively. The aggregate acquisition cost and carrying amount of such certificates of deposits were ¥35,000
million and ¥34,999 million, respectively, as of March 31, 2013. The aggregate acquisition cost and carrying amount of trust beneficiary rights were ¥267,993

million and ¥285,082 million, respectively, as of March 31, 2013.
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As of March 31, 2014

Carrying Acquisition  Unrealized Carrying Acquisition  Unrealized
amount cost gains (losses) amount cost gains (losses)
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)

Available-for-sale securities with unrealized gains:

(1) BONAS ..ot 4,520,051 4,202,729 317,321 43,918 40,834 3,083
a. Government bonds..........ccceeee 2,861,998 2,608,822 253,176 27,807 25,348 2,459
b. Local government bonds........... 104,111 100,523 3,588 1,011 976 34
c. Corporate bonds..........cceceeeeennee 1,553,941 1,493,383 60,557 15,098 14,510 588

(2) Domestic Stocks.......ccceveerereiienne 2,331,534 1,345,838 985,695 22,653 13,076 9,577

(3) Foreign securities ..........cccueveeieene 6,248,424 5,586,906 661,518 60,711 54,283 6,427
a. Foreign bonds............... .. 5,649,038 5,119,855 529,183 54,887 49,745 5,141
b. Other foreign securities ............. 599,385 467,050 132,334 5,823 4,537 1,285

(4) Other securities .....cc.ccceveerveenenene 586,839 535,163 51,676 5,701 5,199 502

Subtotal......ccceeeeririeieee, 13,686,849 11,670,637 2,016,212 132,985 113,395 19,590

Available-for-sale securities with unrealized losses:

(1) BONAS ..ot 150,575 151,927 (1,352) 1,463 1,476 (13)
a. Government bonds 51,947 52,299 (352) 504 508 3)
b. Local government bonds........... 105 105 0) 1 1 )
c. Corporate bonds........cccceevuveenne 98,523 99,522 (999) 957 966 9)

(2) Domestic StOCKS.......cccereeriueerunenne 206,165 260,058 (53,892) 2,003 2,526 (523)

(3) Foreign securities ........c.ccceeeeenenne 604,037 630,623 (26,586) 5,868 6,127 (258)
a. Foreign bonds.........cccocoevieeeeenne 475,347 496,017 (20,669) 4,618 4,819 (200)
b. Other foreign securities ... 128,690 134,606 (5,916) 1,250 1,307 (57)

(4) Other securities ........cccoeerveeieennns 57,255 58,514 (1,259) 556 568 (12)

Subtotal.......ceecereiiiieicceee, 1,018,033 1,101,124 (83,090) 9,891 10,698 (807)
Total. oo 14,704,883 12,771,761 1,933,121 142,876 124,094 18,782

Note: Figures in the above table include (1) certificates of deposit and (2) trust beneficiary rights, which were recorded as cash and deposits and monetary claims
bought on the consolidated balance sheet, respectively. The aggregate acquisition cost and carrying amount of such certificates of deposits were ¥15,000
million (US$145 million) and ¥15,000 million (US$145 million), respectively, as of March 31, 2014. The aggregate acquisition cost and carrying amount of trust
beneficiary rights were ¥268,110 million (US$2,605 million) and ¥281,859 million (US$2,738 million), respectively, as of March 31, 2014.

5. Held-to-maturity Bonds Sold
DL and its consolidated subsidiaries sold no held-to-maturity bonds during the years ended March 31, 2013 and
2014.

6. Policy-reserve-matching Bonds Sold
Policy-reserve-matching bonds sold during the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2014 were as follows:

Year ended March 31, 2013

Amounts Realized Realized
sold gains losses
(Unit: million yen)

(1) BONAS .. 694,578 39,613 2,830
a. Government bonds 694,578 39,613 2,830
(2) Foreign securities .........cccoeveeeciene 9,887 1,384 -
a. Foreign bonds.......ccccccvvviiennnes 9,887 1,384 -
Total. .o 704,466 40,997 2,830

Year ended March 31, 2014

Amounts Realized Realized Amounts Realized Realized
sold gains losses sold gains losses
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)

(1) BONAS ..veeeeeeeeceee e - - - - - -
a. Government bonds. - - - - - -
(2) Foreign securities .........ccceueeeceenne 14,093 2,119 - 136 20 -
a. Foreign bonds.......ccccccceiiiiennnee 14,093 2,119 - 136 20 -
o) €= | 14,093 2,119 - 136 20 -

The Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited



7. Available-for-sale Securities Sold
Available-for-sale securities sold during the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2014 were as follows.

Year ended March 31, 2013

Amounts Realized Realized
sold gains losses
(Unit: million yen)

(1) BONAS ..o 2,323,245 65,869 329
a. Government bonds.................... 2,139,462 61,634 271
b. Local government bonds........... 6,556 70 0
c. Corporate bonds. 177,226 4,164 57

(2) Domestic stocKS......ccveevererecnennnn. 146,388 28,272 22,832

(8) Foreign securities .........ccccceeeueenn. 2,869,685 91,315 40,210
a. Foreign bonds......c.ooevvivveeennnnn. 2,823,505 87,980 29,588
b. Other foreign securities ............. 46,180 3,335 10,622

(4) Other securities .....c..cccccoeerveeenenenne 1,737 132 -

Total.oooeeieeeeeeceeiees 5,341,057 185,589 63,373
Year ended March 31, 2014
Amounts Realized Realized Amounts Realized Realized
sold gains losses sold gains losses
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)

(1) BONAS ..oveeieeieeceeeieecieeiee e 1,692,240 48,416 6,656 16,442 470 64
a. Government bonds..........ccceeeee 1,424,135 41,570 5,247 13,837 403 50
b. Local government bonds........... 890 197 - 8 1 -
c. Corporate bonds........ccccceeveennee 267,215 6,648 1,408 2,596 64 13

(2) Domestic StOCKS.......ceeveereeriennne 154,113 40,648 9,027 1,497 394 87

(3) Foreign securities ......c..ccceereiueennn. 3,566,085 119,230 51,633 34,649 1,158 501
a. Foreign bonds........cccocceevveveiene 3,493,369 103,435 47,827 33,942 1,005 464
b. Other foreign securities ............. 72,715 15,795 3,806 706 153 36

(4) Other securities .......cccceeecveeeenennnn. 1,436 2 176 13 0 1

Total.ooeeeeeeeeeieeeiees 5,413,876 208,298 67,494 52,602 2,023 655

8. Securities Written Down
DL and its consolidated subsidiaries write down the balance of certain available-for-sale securities with market values
(1) when the market value of such securities declines by 50%, or more, of its purchase cost or (2) when the market
value of such securities without a certain level of creditworthiness declines by 30% or more, but less than 50%, of its
purchase cost unless it is deemed that there is a possibility that the fair value of the security could recover to equal
or exceed the purchase cost. The aggregate amounts written down from the balance of available-for-sale securities
with market value for the year ended March 31, 2013 and 2014 were ¥3,131 million and ¥1,401million (US$13 million),
respectively.

Money Held in Trust for Trading
As of March 31,

2013 2014 2014
R (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Carrying amount on the consolidated balance sheet .... 56,251 63,565 617
Gains (losses) on valuation of money held in trust.......cc.cccooeerienneenne (12,130) (18,389) (178)
Money Held in Trust Classified as Available-For-Sale
As of March 31, 2014
Carrying Acquisition  Unrealized Carrying Acquisition  Unrealized
amount cost gains (losses) amount cost gains (losses)
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)
Money held in trust classified as available-for-sale with unrealized gains:
Money held in trust classified as 2,835 2,587 247 o7 5 2
available-for-sale
Total. .o 2,835 2,587 247 27 25 2
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1. Derivative Transactions (Hedge Accounting Not Applied)

(1) Currency-related transactions
As of March 31, 2013

(A) Notional Over 1 year
amount/ included
contract value in (A)

(Unit: million yen)

Fair Gains
value (losses)

Over-the-counter transactions:
Foreign currency forward contracts:

1S To1 o [ 1,414,300 - (16,530) (16,530)
U.S. dollar.......ccccceeeeeeeeeenneen. 741,240 - (18,625) (13,625)
EUrO..ceceeens 265,344 - (2,345) (2,345)
Australian dollar..........ccccce... 71,327 - (376) (876)
British pound........ccccccvvevenneenn. 48,783 - (442) (442)
Canadian dollar .........cccueenees 22,717 - 0 0
Others...oooveecccieieeeeeeeee 264,885 - 258 258

Bought....cooiiiiiiiieee 1,168,220 - (653) (653)
U.S. dollar.......ccceeecueveeeeeeenns 576,066 - 1,109 1,109
=TT N 205,113 - (1,915) (1,915)
Australian dollar...................... 59,030 - 5 5
British pound.......ccccoeeeveeiinens 33,812 - 269 269
Canadian dollar ............cc....... 24,927 - 67 67
Others...cccoeecccieeeeeeeccceeeeee e, 269,268 - (189) (189)

Currency swaps
Receipts yen, payments foreign
currency......... 1,560 1,560 (506) (506)
Australian dollar..........ccccceennee 1,560 1,560 (506) (506)
Total ....eoveeeiieeeeeeeee (17,690)

Note: 1. (1) Forward exchange rates at the end of the year are used for fair value calculation of foreign currency forward contracts.
(2) Fair value of currency swaps is calculated by discounting expected cash flows.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
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As of March 31, 2014
(A) Notional Over 1 year

(A) Notional ~ Over 1 year

. Fair Gains . Fair Gains
amount/ included value (losses) amount/ included value (losses)
contract value in (A) contract value in (A)
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)

Over-the-counter transactions:
Foreign currency forward contracts:

SOId e 1,630,028 - (8,705)  (8,705) 15,837 - (84) (84)
U.S. dollar......ccccecvveeeneenn. 805,133 - (1,904) (1,904) 7,822 - (18) (18)
EUFO oo, 286,081 - (1,233)  (1,233) 2,779 - (11) (11)
Australian dollar... . 148,558 - (3,680) (3,680) 1,443 - (35) (35)
British pound..................... 92,889 - (446) (446) 902 - 4) 4)
Canadian dollar ................ 80,417 - (31) (31) 781 - (©)] 0)
Others....ccooeeeceeeeceeeeeen 216,948 - (1,409) (1,409) 2,107 - (13) (13)

Bought......ccooeiiiiiiiiiiiees 1,290,787 - 1,794 1,794 12,541 - 17 17
U.S. dollar......ccccecvveeennen. 626,321 - 406 406 6,085 - 3 3
EUMO oo, 160,550 - 355 355 1,559 - 3 3
Australian dollar... 115,970 - 290 290 1,126 - 2 2
British pound..................... 85,696 - 24 24 832 - 0 0
Canadian dollar ................ 79,092 - 0 0 768 - 0 0
Others....ccoveeeceeeeceeeeees 223,155 - 716 716 2,168 - 6 6

Currency swaps:
Receipts yen, payments
foreign currency............ 1,560 1,560 (449) (449) 15 15 4) 4)
Australian dollar 1,560 1,560 (449) (449) 15 15 4) 4)
Currency options:
Bought:
PUt e, 207,940 2,020
[1,317] - 55 (1,261) [12] - 0 (12)
U.S. dollar.................... 207,940 2,020
[1,317] - 55 (1,261) [12] - 0 (12)
Total return swaps:
Foreign currency
index linked .................. 57,760 57,760 1,890 1,890 561 561 18 18
o] <=1 I (6,731) (65)

(1) Forward exchange rates at the end of the year are used for fair value calculation of foreign currency forward contracts.

(2) Fair value of currency swaps is calculated by discounting expected cash flows.

(3) An option pricing model is used for fair value calculation of currency options.

(4) Fair value of total return swaps is based on fair value calculated by referred index of 31 March 2014.

2. Figures in [] are option premiums which are included in the consolidated balance sheet.

3. Fair value for forward contracts and swaps, and differences between the option premiums paid/received and fair value of the option for option
transactions, are shown in “Gains (losses)”.

Note: 1.

(2) Interest-related transactions
As of March 31, 2013

(A) Notional ~ Over 1 year
amount/ included
contract value in (A)

(Unit: million yen)

Fair Gains
value (losses)

Exchange-traded transactions:
Interest rate futures:
1S Te] o SRR 23,451 - 3) 3)
Over-the-counter transactions:
Yen interest rate swaps:
Receipts fixed, payments floating.. 18,010 14,510 498 498
Receipts floating, payments fixed.. 3,700 3,700 (74) (74)
Total eeeeeeeee e 420

Note: 1. (1) Fair value of interest rate futures listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
(2) Fair value of yen interest rate swaps listed above is present value of expected cash flows, discounted by the interest rates at the end of the year.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
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As of March 31, 2014
(A) Notional ~ Over 1 year

(A) Notional ~ Over 1 year

Fair Gains Fair Gains

amount/ included amount/ included
contract value in (A) value  (losses) contract value in (A) value  (losses)
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)
Over-the-counter transactions:
Yen interest rate swaps:
Receipts fixed, payments floating..... 20,820 17,770 384 384 202 172 3 3
Receipts floating, payments fixed..... 4,900 4,900 94) (94) 47 47 0 0)
Yen interest rate swaptions:
Bought:
Receipts floating, payments fixed.. 480,000 480,000 4,663 4,663
[11,594] [11,594] 5,220 (6,374) [112] [112] 50 (61)
Total ..o (6,085) (59)

Note: 1. (1) Fair value of yen interest rate swaps listed above is present value of expected cash flows, discounted by the interest rates at the end of the year.
(2) An option pricing model is used for fair value calculation of yen interest rate swaptions.
2. Figures in [ ] are option premiums which are included in the consolidated balance sheet.

3. Fair value for swaps, and differences between the option premiums paid/received and fair value of the option for option transactions, are shown in “Gains
(losses)”.

(3) Stock-related transactions
As of March 31, 2013

Notional )
. Gains
amount/ Fair value
(losses)
contract value
(Unit: million yen)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen stock index futures:
Y01 o [ 4,285 (14) (14)
Bought....ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 8,779 255 255
Foreign currency-denominated
stock index futures:
S To] o [ 4,398 27) 27)
Bought.......coooiiiiieeeeee e 5,740 (1) 1)
Total..ueeeeeeeccieeee e, 212

Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.

As of March 31, 2014

Notional . Notional .
. Gains . Gains
amount/ Fair value amount/ Fair value
(losses) (losses)
contract value contract value
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen stock index futures:
SOId i 40,645 37 37 394 0 0
10,153 288 288 98 2 2
Foreign currency-denominated
stock index futures:
18,749 (319) (319) 182 3) 3
11,016 148 148 107 1 1
154 1

Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.

138 The Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited



(4) Bond-related transactions
As of March 31, 2013

Notional p
amount/ Fair value Gains
contract value (losses)
(Unit: million yen)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen bond futures:
[STo] o [ 12,759 (40) (40)
Bought ... 41,654 92 92
Foreign currency-denominated
bond futures:
[STo1 o [ 2,985 (10) (10)
Yen bond futures options:
Sold
PUt e 42,850
[17] 24 (6)
Over-the-counter transactions:
Bond OTC options:
Sold:
(O U 6,175
[22] 81 (59)
PUL e 65,258
[80] 46 34
Bought
(O | 65,258
[58] 319 260
PUL e 6,175
[27] 29 1
Total..eeeeeeeeee e 271
Note: 1. (1) Fair value of yen bond futures, foreign currency-denominated bond futures and yen bond futures options is based on the closing exchange-traded

prices.
(2) Fair value of bond OTC options is based on the prices quoted from information vendors.
2. Figures in [ ] are option premiums which are included in the consolidated balance sheet.
3. Fair value for futures and differences between the option premiums paid/received and fair value of the option for option transaction, are shown in “Gains
(losses)”.
4. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.

As of March 31, 2014

Notional . Notional .
. Gains ) Gains
amount/ Fair value amount/ Fair value
(losses) (losses)
contract value contract value
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)

Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen bond futures:
Bought ..coeeeiiiiiiieeee 112,052 (116) (116) 1,088 (1) (1)
Foreign currency-denominated
bond futures:
SOl 18,217 11 11 177 0 0
Over-the-counter transactions:
Bond OTC options:

Sold:
[ | S 431,678 4,194
[4,174] 2,100 2,074 [40] 20 20
PUt e 17,731 172
[38] 40 M [0] 0 ©)
Bought
Calliieeeeee e 17,731 172
[33] 9 23) [0] 0 ©)
PUL oo, 431,678 4,194
[8,456] 4,891 (3,565) [82] 47 (34)
o] - | (1,622) (15)

Note: 1. (1) Fair value of yen bond futures and foreign currency-denominated bond futures is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
(2) An option pricing model is used for fair value calculation of bond OTC options.
2. Figures in [] are option premiums which are included in the consolidated balance sheet.
3. Fair value for futures and differences between the option premiums paid/received and fair value of the option for option transaction, are shown in “Gains
(losses)”.
4. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.
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(5) Others
DFLI utilizes derivative transactions within its money held in trust for trading purposes and foreign securities
(investment trust). Details of the derivative transactions are as follows:

a) Currency-related transactions
As of March 31, 2013

Notional .
amount/ Fair value Gains
contract value (losses)
(Unit: million yen)
Exchange traded transactions:
Currency futures:

SOId e 31,272 (332) (332)
(Yen /U.S. dollar)........cccceereennee. 31,272 (332) (832)

Bought......cooeciiiiiiieeieeeeeeee e, 15,317 (95) (95)
(Euro / U.S. dollar) .......ccceeevuueenne 10,649 (102) (102)
(British pound / U.S. dollar)......... 4,667 7 7

Over-the-counter transactions:
Foreign currency forward contracts:

SOl .. 28,018 (146) (146)
U.S. dollar........ccocevveeeiieenieeeeene 15,872 (99) (99)
EUFO oo 5,822 32) (82)
Canadian dollar .........ccccceeeeuueen. 2,127 7) 7)

1,529 (10) (10)
1,230 0 0
1,435 2 2

(574)

Note: 1. (1) Fair value of currency futures listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
(2) Forward exchange rates at the end of the year are used for fair value calculation of foreign currency forward contracts.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.

As of March 31, 2014

Notional . Notional .
. Gains . Gains
amount/ Fair value amount/ Fair value
(losses)

losses,
contract value ( ) contract value

(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)
Exchange traded transactions:
Currency futures:

SOl .. 2,135 (1) (1) 20 (0)] (0)]
(Euro / U.S. dollar) .......ccceeveuveenne 1,495 3 3 14 0 0
(British pound / U.S. dollar)......... 640 4) 4) 6 ) 0)

Bought.....coceiiiiieeeceeee 4,461 47) 47) 43 0 0)
(Yen/U.S. dollan).......cccveeveuennne 4,461 47) 47) 43 0) 0)

Over-the-counter transactions:
Foreign currency forward contracts:

SOl e 57,694 (293) (299) 560 2 2
U.S. dollar.......cooeceeeeniieneiiienens 27,903 (93) (93) 271 0) 0)
BUO ..o 15,246 () 2 148 ) 0)
British pound 4,306 (24) (24) 41 0) 0)
Canadian dollar ... 3,496 (10) (10) 33 0) (0)]
Australian dollar...........cccceeeeenee 3,232 (125) (125) 31 1) 1)
Others.....covveeeeeeeeeeeeeee 3,507 37) 37) 34 0) 0)

Bought......coeeiiiieeieeeeee e 19,024 81 81 184 0 0
U.S. dollar.......ooeeeeeeiiieiiiieaene 9,735 41 41 94 0 0
Euro.............. 4,932 24 24 47 0 0
British pound... 1,194 5 5 11 0 0
Australian dollar... . 948 3 3 9 0 0
Canadian dollar .......ccccccceeeeunennn. 929 2 2 9 0 0
Others......coeceeieeeieeneeeeeeeeeen 1,283 4 4 12 0 0

Total ...ooveeeieeeeeeeee e (261) ()

Note: 1. (1) Fair value of currency futures listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
(2) Forward exchange rates at the end of the year are used for fair value calculation of foreign currency forward contracts.

2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.

3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.
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b) Stock-related transactions
As of March 31, 2013

Notional f
. Gains
amount/ Fair value
(losses)
contract value
(Unit: million yen)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen stock index futures:
1Yo ] o [ 11,846 (96) (96)
Bought......oooiiiieieeeeen 13,407 35 35
Foreign currency-denominated
stock index futures:
Yo o [ 9,045 (59) (59)
Bought......ccooviiiiiiieiieeeeeee, 13,595 3 3
Total oo (116)

Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.

As of March 31, 2014

Notional . Notional .
. Gains . Gains
amount/ Fair value amount/ Fair value
(losses) (losses)
contract value contract value
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)

Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen stock index futures:
S Teo] o ISR 13,942 (553) (553) 135 5) (5)
Foreign currency-denominated
stock index futures:
SOId i 9,978 (190) (190) 96 (1) (1)
Total .cooeeeeeeieeeeeee (744) )
Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.

2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.

c) Bond-related transactions
As of March 31, 2013
Notional
amount/ Fair value
contract value

(Unit: million yen)

Gains
(losses)

Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen bond futures:
Bought......ccooiiieiiiiecereeerecee 29,031 60 60
Foreign currency-denominated
bond futures:

32,188 (123) (123)
19,033 204 204
141

Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.

As of March 31, 2014

Notional . Notional .
. Gains . Gains
amount/ Fair value amount/ Fair value
(losses) (losses)
contract value contract value
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen bond futures:
33,571 (20) (20) 326 (0)] 0)
Foreign currency-denominated
bond futures:
Yo [ I RPN 42,888 40 40 416 0 0
Total oo 20 0

Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.
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2. Derivative Transactions (Hedge Accounting Applied)

(1) Currency-related transactions
As of March 31, 2013

(A) Notional
amount/
contract value

(Unit: million yen)

Over 1 year

included in (4) T air value

Deferral hedge:
Currency swaps to hedge foreign currency-denominated bonds:
Receipts yen, payments
foreign currency.........cceeveeueeee 9,877 9,877 (1,139)
U.S. dollar .....cccoereeeenieniiiineens 9,877 9,877 (1,139)
Fair value hedge:
Foreign currency forward contracts to hedge foreign currency-denominated

bonds:
2,427,927 - (145,161)
1,481,780 - (138,325)
660,985 - (4,347)
British pound.......ccccceeevvevinnnnne 167,377 - (188)
Australian dollar ..........ccceceeeenes 62,762 - (1,348)
Canadian dollar...........ccceceeeueeee 14,290 - 17
Others ...ooeeeeeeeeceeee e 40,731 - (968)
510 0o ] o 8,601 - 421
U.S. dollar .....ceceveeceereeceeeee 7,012 - 462
Euro....ccccceeee. 710 - (25)
British pound........ccccceviiriiennnen. 440 - 7)
Australian dollar .........cccccceeennes 131 - (1)
Others ....occeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 306 - (6)

Foreign currency forward contracts, etc., allocated to and/or combined with
corresponding hedged items:
Foreign currency forward contracts to hedge foreign currency-denominated term

deposits:

£ Te] o DTSR 265,260 - n
Australian dollar ........................ 180,277 - n
U.S. dollar ......ccoeeeeeeeeieciieeeeens 84,982 - n

Currency swaps to hedge foreign currency-denominated bonds payable:
Receipts foreign currency,

paymentsyen . ... 107,562 107,562 2
U.S. dollar .....cccoviviniiiiiiininnns 107,562 107,562 5

Note: 1. Currency swaps: Fair value of currency swaps is calculated by discounting expected cash flows.
2. Foreign currency forward contracts: Forward exchange rates at the end of the fiscal year are used for fair value calculation.
(*1) As foreign currency forward contracts which apply the currency allotment method are accounted for as combined with foreign currency-denominated
term deposits as hedged items, their fair value is included in the fair value of such foreign currency-denominated term deposits.
(*2) As foreign currency swaps which apply the currency allotment method are accounted for as combined with foreign currency-denominated bonds payable
as hedged items, their fair value is included in the fair value of such foreign currency-denominated bonds payable.
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As of March 31, 2014

(A) Notional
amount/
contract value

Over 1 year
included in (A)

Fair value amount/

(A) Notional Over 1 year

included in (a) T air value

contract value

(Unit: million yen)
Deferral hedge:
Currency swaps to hedge foreign currency-denominated bonds:
Receipts yen, payments

(Unit: million US dollars)

foreign currency........cccceeueen. 42,977 42,977 (2,602) 417 417 (25)

U.S. dollar
Fair value hedge:

42,977 42,977 (2,602) 417 417 (25)

Foreign currency forward contracts to hedge foreign currency-denominated bonds:

1o [o [T 2,734,183 - (47,814) 26,566 - (464)
U.S. dollar ... ... 1,116,047 - (22,338) 10,843 - (217)
EUro..ccvreeeens ... 1,063,706 - (12,887) 10,335 - (125)
Australian dollar .... 207,160 - (8,166) 2,012 - (79)
British pound......... 141,008 - (318) 1,370 - 3)
Canadian dollar.. 14,462 - (248) 140 - )
Others ............ 191,798 - (3,854) 1,863 - 37)

Bought ......... 4,323 - 28 42 - 0
U.S. dollar ... 3,247 - 19 31 - 0
British pound.. 641 - 8 6 - 0
EUrO....oieieeces 434 - (©)] 4 - (©)]

Foreign currency forward contracts, etc., allocated to and/or combined with corresponding hedged items:
Foreign currency forward contracts to hedge foreign currency-denominated term deposits:

[STe1 o I 516,987 -
Australian dollar . 329,055 -
U.S. dollar .....ccceeeeceeeecieeeeen, 187,932 -

e 5,023 - e
e 3,197 - ¢
e 1,826 - e

Currency swaps to hedge foreign currency-denominated bonds payable and loans:

Receipts yen, payments
foreign currency........ccceeenueen. 117,482 117,482
Foreign currency-denominated
bonds payable:

U.S. dollar........ccceeceiviininens 107,562 107,562
Foreign currency-denominated
loans:
U.S. dollar.......cccceveiiiinenens 9,920 9,920

@ 1,141 1,141 2
2 1,045 1,045 2
(2) 96 96 (2)

Note: 1. Currency swaps: Fair value of currency swaps is calculated by discounting expected cash flows.
2. Foreign currency forward contracts: Forward exchange rates at the end of the fiscal year are use

d for fair value calculation.

(*1) As foreign currency forward contracts which apply the currency allotment method are accounted for as combined with foreign currency-denominated

term deposits as hedged items, their fair value is included in the fair value of such foreign curre
(*2) As foreign currency swaps which apply the currency allotment method are accounted for as co

ncy-denominated term deposits.
mbined with foreign currency-denominated bonds payable

and loans as hedged items, their fair value is included in the fair value of such foreign currency-denominated bonds payable and loans.
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(2) Interest-related transactions

As of March 31, 2013

(A) Notional
amount/
contract value

(Unit: million yen)

Over 1 year

included in () " air value

Deferral hedge
Yen interest rate swaps to hedge loans payable:
Receipts floating, payments fixed ... 320,000 320,000 (1,786)
Special hedge accounting
Yen interest rate swaps to hedge loans:
Receipts fixed, payments floating ... 52,100 19,700 928
Note: Fair value listed above is present values of expected cash flows, discounted by the interest rates at the end of the fiscal year.

As of March 31, 2014

(A) Notional (A) Notional
Over 1 year . Over 1 year .
amount/ . f Fair value amount/ . f Fair value
included in (A) included in (A)
contract value contract value
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)

Deferral hedge
Yen interest rate swaps to hedge loans payable:
Receipts floating, payments fixed ... 320,000 320,000 (1,143) 3,109 3,109 (11)
Special hedge accounting
Yen interest rate swaps to hedge loans:
Receipts fixed, payments floating... 25,500 14,800 509 247 143 4

Note: Fair value listed above is present values of expected cash flows, discounted by the interest rates at the end of the fiscal year.

(3) Stock-related transactions

As of March 31, 2013

Notional
amount/ Fair value
contract value

(Unit: million yen)

Fair value hedge
Equity forward contracts to hedge domestic stocks:
SOId....oeievieeieeee e 34,949 (13,541)

Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the market price of underlying assets, interest rates and expected dividends, etc.
2. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.

As of March 31, 2014

Notional Notional
amount/ Fair value amount/ Fair value
contract value contract value
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)

Fair value hedge
Equity forward contracts to hedge domestic stocks:
SOId....oiereeceeee e 53,072 (293) 515 (2)

Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the market price of underlying assets, interest rates and expected dividends, etc.
2. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.

For the year ended March 31, 2013
1. Overview of Employees’ Retirement Benefit Plan of the Group
As a defined benefit plan for its sales representatives, DL has established and maintained a benefit plan consisting of
retirement lump sum grants and company administered pension.
As a defined benefit plan for its administrative personnel, DL has established and maintained a benefit plan
consisting of defined benefit corporate pension, retirement lump sum grants and defined contribution pension.
Certain consolidated subsidiaries maintain their benefit plan consisting of retirement lump sum grants and defined
benefit corporate pension.
As of April 1, 2013, DL transferred certain of its retirement lump sum grants to defined contribution pension.
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2. Funding Status of Employees’ Retirement Benefits of the Group

As of March 31,

2013
(Unit: million yen)
a. Projected benefit obligations ..........cccocoeriiiieniiiieeeee (664,761)
D. PeNSIiON @SSELS ....uuiiiiiiiiieieeee s 235,369
Retirement benefit trust included in the above pension assets..... 120,596
c. Unfunded benefit obligations (@ + b)........ccceveeviiniiiieiiciiee (429,392)
d. Unrecognized actuarial differences...........ceveevieniennieencenieneee (10,344)
e. Unrecognized gains/losses on plan amendments........................ 2
f. Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits (C + d + €) ...ccccueeennes (439,734)

Note: Certain of its consolidated subsidiaries applied simplified methods in calculating their projected benefit obligations.

3. Retirement Benefit Expenses

Year ended March 31,

2013

. Service COSt (NOLE) ...uurreiueeeeeieeeccie et e et e e e
. INEEIrESt COSL....eiiiie e
. Estimated investment inCome...........ccoveiiiiiieice s
. Amortization of unrecognized actuarial differences............c..........
. Amortization of unrecognized gains/losses on plan amendments....

ONErS....eeeeeeee ettt e e n e

(Unit: million yen)

25,968

Q™ o O 0O T Q

. Retirement benefit expenses @+b+c+d +e+1)

Note: Retirement benefit expenses of DL’s consolidated subsidiaries which apply simplified methods are included in the item “Service cost”.

4. Assumptions

Year ended March 31,

2013
Method of periodic allocation of estimated retirement benefits straight-line method
DiISCOUNT FALE ...ttt 1.10r1.7%
Estimated return on investment
a. Defined benefit corporate pension.........cccccevceevevcieecccieeccceeeee 1.00r1.7%
b. Retirement benefit trust...........cooi i 0.0%
Amortization period for actuarial differences ...........cccocceeviiriinieeennen. 3 or 7 years

Amortization period for gains/losses on plan amendments................

(Starting from the following
fiscal year under the straight-line method)
3 years
(Amortized under the straight-line method)

For the year ended March 31, 2014

1. Overview of Employees’ Retirement Benefit Plan of the Group
As a defined benefit plan for its sales representatives, DL has established and maintained a benefit plan consisting of

retirement lump sum grants and company administered pension.

As a defined benefit plan for its administrative personnel, DL has established and maintained a benefit plan
consisting of defined benefit corporate pension, retirement lump sum grants and defined contribution pension.
Certain consolidated subsidiaries maintain their benefit plan consisting of retirement lump sum grants and defined

benefit corporate pension.

As of April 1, 2013, DL transferred certain of its retirement lump sum grants to defined contribution pension.
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2. Defined benefit plans

(1) Reconciliations of beginning and ending balances of projected benefit obligations
(Except for the plans which apply the simplified method)
Year ended March 31,
2014 2014
(Unit: million
US dollars)

(Unit: million yen)

Beginning balance of the projected benefit obligation........................ 664,459 6,456
SEIVICE COSL..oiiiiiiiiiee ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e annnees 24,559 238
Interest CoSt.....oiii 10,740 104
Accruals of actuarial gains and l0SSeS ..........ccccceervieriiieciiiieeciees 419 4
Payment of retirement benefits .........cccceecveeieccee e (34,726) (837)
Changes associated with the transition to a defined contribution

[0 1= a1 o] a1 o] = 1o R (30,794) (299)

Ending balance of the projected benefit obligation............cccoevveieenns 634,657 6,166

Note: Amount that the Company transferred to the defined contribution pension plan for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014 is ¥31,393 million (US$305 million),
and is scheduled to be transferred in four years. The ¥22,133 million (US$215 million) not transferred as of the current fiscal year-end are recorded in other
liabilities.

(2) Reconciliations of beginning and ending balances of pension assets
(Except for the plans which apply the simplified method)
Year ended March 31,
2014 2014
(Unit: million
US dollars)

(Unit: million yen)

Beginning balance of pension assets 235,369 2,286
Expected return 0N assets.......ooocceiieeeiieiecieiieee e 1,935 18
Accruals of actuarial gains and I0SSEs .........ccceveiieeiriieeeniiee e 12,949 125
Contributions from the employer..........cccceveeeiciee e 7,569 73
Payment of retirement benefits ..o (8,265) (80)

Ending balance of pension assets .........cccccccveiiiiiiiciieeeiiieeeiiee e 249,559 2,424

(3) Reconciliations of beginning and ending balances of net defined benefit liabilities for the plans which apply the
simplified method

Year ended March 31,

2014 2014
N (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Beginning balance of the net defined benefit liabilities....................... 302 2
Retirement benefit eXpenses.........cccvviiiiiiiiieniinieccc 104 1
Payment of retirement benefits ..o (68) 0
OherS....ccceiiceece e 0 0
Ending balance of the net defined benéfit liabilities........cc.cccvnerieanns 338 3

(4) Reconciliations of year-end balance of projected benefit obligations and pension assets, and net defined
benefit liabilities and assets that have been recorded in the consolidated balance sheet
Year ended March 31,
2014 2014
(Unit: million
US dollars)

(Unit: million yen)

Projected benefit obligation of funded plans ...........cccoeiieiiiiieeneenn. 349,797 3,398

Pension @SSEtS .....cociiiiiiiiiee s (249,559) (2,424)

100,237 973

Projected benefit obligation of unfunded plans ..........ccccevciiieeiicenns 285,198 2,771
Net of assets and liabilities recorded in the consolidated balance

SNEEE ... s 385,436 3,745

Net defined benefit liabilities ..., 385,436 3,745

Net defined benefit assets.......coviviieiiiiiee i - -

SNEET ... 385,436 3,745
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(5) Amount of the components of retirement benefit expenses

Year ended March 31,

2014 2014

T (Unit: million

(Unit: million yen) US dollars)

SEIVICE COSE ..ttt 24,559 238
INEEreSt COSt....ooieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 10,740 104
Expected return 0N assets .......ccoecceeeiciieicciee et (1,935) (18)
Expense of actuarial gains and I0SSeS ..........cuovveeeiiiiieieiieee e 1,404 13
Expense of prior SErviCe COSt........covriiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 2 0
Retirement benefit expenses calculated in simplified method............ 104 1
(@ =Y < TP PRPPRN 654 6
Retirement benefit expenses of defined benefit plans...........cccccveeen. 35,530 345

(6) Accumulated remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Breakdown of items recorded in accumulated remeasurements of defined benefit plans (before applicable tax

effect) is as follows:

Year ended March 31,

2014 2014
R (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Unrecognized actuarial gains (I0SSES) .......ccceereeerieeriirrieenieeneeeeeenaes (24,336) (236)
LIS NN (24,336) (236)

(7) Pension assets

a) Main components of the pension assets
Ratios of the major assets to the total pension assets are as follows:

S ] (o o7 P 58%
Life insurance general aCCount ..........cccocveriiriiceiic i 17%
BONG...c e e 16%
OherS......oiiee e 9%
TOAL e 100%

Note: 51% of the total pension assets is retirement benefit trust that has been set for the unfunded retiremen

t benefit plans.

b) The method of setting the long-term expected rate of return on pension assets
To determine the long-term expected rate of return on pension assets, DL has taken into account the allocation
of pension assets at present and in future, and long-term rate of return on a variety of assets that make up the

pension assets at present and in future.

(8) Calculation basis of actuarial gains and losses

Major assumptions of actuarial gains and losses as of the current fiscal year-end are as follows:

DiISCOUNT e ... e 1.10r1.7%
Long-term expected rate of return
Defined benefit corporate pension .........cc.ccceveercinieeeiecnienieeseee 1.00r1.7%
Employee pension trUSt........c.coeeiieiiieieeiee s 0.0%

3. Defined contribution Plans

Required amount of contribution to defined contribution plans is ¥1,536 million (US$14 million).
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1. The account used to record expenses associated with issuing stock options and the amount

expensed

Operating expenses for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013: ¥244 million
Operating expenses for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014: ¥238 million (US$2 million)

2. Details of the stock options granted for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014

(1) Details of the stock options

1st Series of
Stock Acquisition Rights

2nd Series of
Stock Acquisition Rights

3rd Series of
Stock Acquisition Rights

Granted persons

10 directors (except outside
directors) and 16 executive
officers of DL

11 directors (except outside
directors) and 16 executive
officers of DL

11 directors (except outside
directors) and 17 executive
officers of DL

Class and total
number ©)

169,800 shares of common
stock

318,700 shares of common
stock

183,700 shares of common
stock

Granted date

August 16, 2011

August 16, 2012

August 16, 2013

Vesting
conditions

The acquisition rights are vested
on the above granted date.

The acquisition rights are vested
on the above granted date.

The acquisition rights are vested
on the above granted date.

Service period
covered

N/A

N/A

N/A

Exercise period

From August 17, 2011 to August
16, 2041

A granted person may exercise
stock options only within 10
days from the day following the
date on which she/he loses the
status as both a director and an
executive officer of DL.

From August 17, 2012 to August
16, 2042

A granted person may exercise
stock options only within 10
days from the day following the
date on which she/he loses the
status as both a director and an
executive officer of DL.

From August 17, 2013 to August
16, 2043

A granted person may exercise
stock options only within 10
days from the day following the
date on which she/he loses the
status as both a director and an
executive officer of DL.

(*)It has been described in terms of the number of shares. The Company conducted a 1:100 share split on October 1, 2013. It is translated into the number
of shares that takes into account the share split

(2) Figures relating to the stock options
The following table covers stock options which existed during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014 and the total
number of stock options is translated to the number of common stock.

a) Number of the stock options (shares)

(shares)

1st Series of

Stock Acquisition Rights

2nd Series of
Stock Acquisition Rights

3rd Series of
Stock Acquisition Rights

Before vesting

Outstanding at the end
of prior fiscal year -

Granted - - 183,700
Forfeited - - -
Vested - - 183,700

Outstanding at the end
of the fiscal year -
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After vesting

Outstanding at the end

of prior fiscal year 153,200 318,700 -
Vested - - 183,700
Exercised 15,400 28,000 -
Forfeited - - -
Outstanding at the end

of the fiscal year 137,800 290,700 183,700

Note: It has been described in terms of the number of shares. The Company conducted a 1:100 share split on October 1, 2013. It is translated into the
number of shares that takes into account the share split.

b) Price information

1st Series of
Stock Acquisition Rights

2nd Series of
Stock Acquisition Rights

3rd Series of
Stock Acquisition Rights

Exercise price

¥1 per stock option

¥1 per stock option

¥1 per stock option

Average stock price at

the time of exercise ¥1,277 ¥1,277 -
Fair value at the granted
date ¥885 ¥766 ¥1,300

Note: It has been described in terms of the number of shares. The Company conducted a 1:100 share split on October 1, 2013. It is translated into the
number of shares that takes into account the share split.

Valuation method used for estimating fair value of stock options
Stock options granted for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014 were valued as follows:

(1) Valuation method
Black-Scholes Model

(2) Assumptions

3rd Series of Stock Acquisition Rights

Expected volatility

40.280%

Expected durations

3 years

Expected dividends ¥

¥20

Risk-free interest rate (4

0.142%

(1) Computed based on the closing prices of common stock in each trading day from August 16, 2010 to August 15, 2013.
(*2) Computed based on the average service period from the granted date to expected exercise date.
(

October 1, 2013. It is translated into the number of shares that takes into account the stock split.

1
2
*8) Computed based on the expected dividend for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014. In addition, the Company conducted a 1:100 share split on
4)

(*4) Based on yields of Japanese government bonds for a term corresponding to the expected durations.

Method to estimate the number of stock options vested

Only the actual number of forfeited stock options is considered, because it is difficult to rationally estimate the number

of stock options to be forfeited in the future.
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1. Major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities
As of March 31,

2013 2014 2014
(Unit: million yen) (Bgt(;g:glrz)n
Deferred tax assets:
Policy reserves and Others.........c.cooviiiiieieeieeeeee e 405,907 443,531 4,309
Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits..........cccocceeviiiiniicnns 163,467 - -
Net defined benefits liabilities..........cccoourriiiiiirieeeee - 144,801 1,406
Reserve for price fluctuations...........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 27,620 36,255 352
Losses on valuation of securities... 18,824 17,414 169
Tax losses carried forward...........cooovveeiieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 13,775 13,389 130
ONEIS ..ttt ettt s b et e e sbeeereanneeens 32,828 46,216 449
SUDLOLAI .. e 662,424 701,608 6,817
Valuation alloWanCEeS .........ccoocueeiiiiiie et (68,985) (76,227) (740)
Lo = PP PR URTPI 593,438 625,381 6,076
Deferred tax liabilities:
Net unrealized gains on securities, net of taX.........cccecceeerieeernieenn. (487,237) (579,931) (5,634)
Other intangible fixed assets ........ccoiiiiiniiiiieneee e (13,987) (13,623) (132)
Reserve for tax basis adjustments of real estate...........cccccuveeenneen. 9,222) (10,416) (101)
Accrued dividend receivables..........cccccoviiriiiiieiiienee e (6,637) (7,093) (68)
ONEIS ..ottt sr e nnee e (22,227) (23,690) (230)
Lo = PSR (539,313) (634,755) (6,167)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)........ccccuerrrrrieieieerienieeeeeeeees 54,125 (9,374) (91)

2. The principal reasons for the difference between the statutory tax rate and actual effective tax rate
after considering deferred taxes

Year ended March 31,

2013 2014

STALULOY tAX FALE....o ettt e 33.23% 33.23%
(Adjustments)

Increase in valuation @alloWaNCES...........ceoiiiiririeeree e 17.30% 5.39%
Difference in tax rate associated with special corporate tax for reconstruction 12.59% 4.78%
Decrease in deferred tax assets in relation to change in tax rates ..........cccoceevivriennennne - 3.40%
[ 10T PP (15.83%) 1.32%
Actual effective tax rate after considering deferred taxes........ccoviviiiiiiiiiiiciiiiniiiesinens 47.29% 48.13%

3. Adjustment of deferred tax assets and liabilities due to changes in effective statutory tax rate
With the promulgation of the “Law for partial revision of income tax (No. 10, 2014 Law)” and “Government ordinance
for partial revision of the government ordinance related to corporate special reconstruction tax (No. 151, 2014
Government ordinance)”, the effective tax rate to be used in the calculation of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets for the fiscal year beginning April 1, 2014 has been changed to 30.68% from 33.23%.
As a result of this change, deferred tax assets decreased by ¥4,925 million (US$47 million) and corporate income
taxes-deferred increased by ¥4,964 million (US$48 million).

1. Overview of Asset Retirement Obligations
DL recognized statutory or similar obligations associated with some of its real estate for rent and business use with

regard to the removal of (1) tangible fixed assets and (2) certain harmful substances in the tangible fixed assets and so
recorded the asset retirement obligation.

2. Calculation Method of Asset Retirement Obligations

DL calculated the asset retirement obligation by (1) estimating the period of service of each building between 0 and 37
years based on its contract term and useful life and (2) applying discount rates ranging from 0.144% to 2.294%.
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3. Increase and Decrease in Asset Retirement Obligations

The following table shows the increase and decrease in asset retirement obligations:

Year ended March 31,

2013 2014 2014
R Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) (US dollars)
Beginning balance..........c.coiiiiiiiiiiiicie e 3,551 2,855 27
Time progress adjustments..........ccceiiiiieiriiieese e 38 41 0
(@ =Y < T PRSPPI (734) (65) (0)
Ending balance 2,855 2,831 27

DL owns a number of commercial buildings, including land, for rent in various locations including Tokyo. Net rental
income from such real estate for rent for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2014 were ¥24,807 million and ¥26,116
million (US$253 million), respectively. The rental income was included in investment income and the rental expense was
included in investment expenses. DL recorded impairment loss on real estate for rent as extraordinary losses for the
fiscal years ended March 31, 2013 and 2014 that were ¥2,949 million and ¥19,196 million (US$186 million), respectively.

The carrying amount, net change during the year and the market value of such rental real estate were as follows:
Year ended March 31,

2013 2014 2014
- Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) (US dollars)
Carrying amount
Beginning balance......... 840,711 814,007 7,909
Net change during year (26,703) (10,914) (106)
ENding DalanCe .......coiuiiiiieiei e 814,007 803,093 7,803
Market value 768,069 792,311 7,698

Note: 1. The carrying amount of rental real estate on the consolidated balance sheet was acquisition costs net of accumulated depreciation and impairments.

N

. Net change in carrying amount includes cost of acquisition of the real estate for ¥26,014 million, sale of the real estate for ¥28,411 million and the
depreciation expense of ¥14,597 million during the year ended March 31, 2013, and cost of acquisition of the real estate for ¥40,155 million (US$390
million), sale of the real estate for ¥21,790 million (US$211 million), impairment loss for ¥19,196 million (US$186 million) and depreciation expense of
¥14,184 million (US$137 million), during the year ended March 31, 2014.

. DL calculates the market value of the majority of the real estate for rent based on real estate appraisal standards by an independent appraiser, and others
based on the internal but reasonable estimates.

w

Segment Information

For the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2014

Overview of the reporting segments
The overview of the reporting segment has been omitted as DL on a consolidated basis did not operate any
businesses categorized in segments other than its own core life insurance business.

Other Related Information
For the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2014

(1) Product (Service) Segment Information
The product (service) segment information has been omitted as the Group’s operations consist of only one product
(service) segment.

(2) Geographic Segment Information
The geographic segment information has been omitted as more than 90% of the Group’s ordinary revenues and
tangible fixed assets derive from its business unit in Japan.

(3) Major Customer Information
The major customer information has been omitted as no single customer accounts for 10% or more of the Group’s
ordinary revenues.

Impairment Losses on Fixed Assets by Reporting Segment

For the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2014

The information on impairment losses on fixed assets by reporting segment has been omitted as the Group’s
operations consist of only one segment.
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4. Amortization of Goodwill and Unamortized Amount of Goodwill by Reporting Segment
For the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2014
The information on the amortization of goodwill and unamortized amount of goodwill by reporting segment has been
omitted as the Group’s operations consist of only one segment.

5. Gain on Negative Goodwill by Reporting Segment
For the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2014
Not applicable

6. Related Party Transactions

For the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2014
There are no significant transactions to be disclosed.

As of / Year ended March 31,

2013 2014 2014
(Unit: yen) (Unit: US dollars)
Net assets Per Share .......occcueeieiii e 1,657.14 1,962.05 19.06
Net income per share.........coccooviiiiiiiiie s 32.75 78.58 0.76
Diluted net income per share ... 32.74 78.54 0.76

Note 1: The Company conducted a 1:100 share split on October 1, 2013. Net income per share and diluted net
income per share are calculated, assuming that the share split was conducted at the beginning of the
previous fiscal year.

Note 2: The Company applied the accounting standard for retirement benefits, etc., and followed the handling
transitional provisions of paragraph 37 accounting standard for retirement benefits as described in the
“Changes in Accounting Policies”. As a result, net assets per share for this fiscal year increased by ¥16.98

(US$0.16).
Note 3: Underlying basis for the calculation of the net income per share and the diluted net income per share was
as follows:
Year ended March 31,
2013 2014 2014
(Unit: million

(Unit: million yen) US dollars)

Net income per share
NELINCOME ...t naaas 32,427 77,931 757
Net income attributable to other than shareholders of
COMMON SEOCK...eeiiiiiieitiiee e e e e e e e e e e e eenees - - -

Net income attributable to shareholders of common stock........ 32,427 77,931 757
Average number of common stock outstanding © ...................... 990,010 991,732 991,732
thousand thousand thousand

shares shares shares

Diluted net income per share
Adjustments t0 Net INCOME........ccoiuiiiiiiii e - - -

Increase in the number of common stock.........cccceeeeveviecieeeenees 365 thousand 554 thousand 554 thousand
shares shares shares

[Increase in the number of common stock attributable to [365 thousand  [554 thousand [554 thousand
subscription rights to shares] ........ccccceeceveevieeeeciee e shares] shares] shares]

Outline of the dilutive shares which are not counted in the basis
of calculation of diluted net income per share because they
do not have dilutive effect.........ccccerveriiiiiiiiiieen - - -

(*) “Average number of common stock outstanding” in the above table excludes shares held by the J-ESOP or the E-Ship®.
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Note 4: Underlying basis for the calculation of the net assets per share was as follows:
As of March 31,

2013 2014 2014

N (Unit: million

(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
NEL ASSELS ...uvrieiiiie e e an 1,649,020 1,947,613 18,923
AJUSTMENTS . e 6,894 639 6
Subscription rights to shares..........ccccovviieiiiinieeee 379 583 5
MiNOrity INtErESES ....eeieiiciie e 6,514 55 (0)
Net assets attributable to commOon StOCK .......ccciiiiiiiiiiiieiiiieeeseeans 1,642,125 1,946,974 18,917
Number of common stock outstanding @.........cccceeeerereennrcceneneeene 990,940 992,316 992,316
thousand thousand thousand
shares shares shares

(*) “Number of common stock outstanding” in the above table excludes shares held by the J-ESOP or the E-Ship®.

1. The board of directors of DL resolved to acquire 100% of the outstanding shares of Protective Life
Corporation (“Protective”) at the board meeting held on June 4, 2014 and entered into a definitive
agreement with Protective on the same day that a 100% owned subsidiary of DL established in the
U.S. solely for the purpose of the acquisition process will be merged with Protective.

(1) Purpose of share acquisition
The Group aims to accelerate globalization of its business as a group by acquiring a business foundation in the
U.S,, the largest life insurance market in the world, to enhance corporate value and profit base, and achieve a
geographical diversification.

(2) Acquired company’s name and business, etc.

a) Name of the acquired company
Protective Life Corporation

b) Business

Insurance and insurance related business ©
(*) Protective is a holding company and its subsidiaries operate insurance business, etc.

c) Location
South Birmingham, Alabama, USA

d) Results of operations (consolidated basis, for the fiscal year ended December 2013)

Premium and policy fees........cooiiiiiiieciiiniceeceeecee US$2,981 million (¥304.1 billion)
[N =Y g TeTo T o = S US$393 million (¥40.1 billion)

e) Financial conditions (consolidated basis, as of the end of December 2013)

Total @SSELS..uuiiiiiieiciee e US$68,784 million (¥7,015.9 billion)

NEt @SSELS ...ocviiiiiiieee e US$3,714 million (¥378.9 billion)

(0111 =11 oY) QR US$44 million (¥4.5 billion)
f) Others

Common stock of Protective is listed in the New York Stock Exchange.

(3) Schedule of share acquisition
Although we intend to acquire the shares by December 2014 to January 2015, the acquisition is subject to approval
of both the U.S. and Japanese regulatory authorities, etc. and, therefore, the actual schedule may differ from
original plan.

(4) Amount to be invested and DL’s percentage of share holdings after completion of the transaction
a) Amount to be invested
The acquiring price is expected to be approximately US$5,708 million (approximately ¥582.2 billion) and US$70

per share (¥7,140). Upon acquisition, it is forecasted that specific compensation and fee to be paid to outside
advisors, etc. will occur.
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b) DL’s percentage of share holdings after completion of the transaction
100%

(5) Source of consideration
In addition to cash in hand, DL plans a fundraising through newly issuance of common stocks based on the Shelf
Registration Statement.

(6) Others
The acquisition will be executed by merging Protective and DL Investment (Delaware), Inc., a 100% owned
subsidiary of DL established in the U.S. solely for the purposed of the acquisition process. The merger will come
into effect subject to approval of Protective’s shareholders, and Protective is the surviving corporation. Through this
process and by paying a cash consideration to Protective’s existing shareholders, DL will acquire 100% ownership
of Protective. The acquisition is subject to the approval of various regulatory authorities in Japan and the U.S.

Note. The exchange rate used to calculate the yen-denominated amount is 1USD = 102JPY.

The board of directors of DL resolved to file a Shelf Registration Statement for the issuance of new
shares at the board meeting held on June 4, 2014.

(1) Class of offered securities
Common stock of DL

(2) Scheduled issue period
The period until the day when passed one year from the scheduled effective date of the shelf registration (from June
12, 2014 until June 11, 2015)

(3) Scheduled issue amount
A maximum amount of ¥250 billion

(4) Offering method
To be determined

(5) Use of proceeds
To be appropriated in full to the funds for the acquisition of Protective

On June 16, 2014, DL entered into an agreement with Sompo Japan Insurance Inc. for the acquisition
of whole stake in Sompo Japan DIY Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (“DIY Life”).

(1) Purpose of share acquisition
The Group aims to offer insurance products of new brand through a network of agents in consideration of diversity

of customers’ needs to develop a new market by acquiring DIY Life.

(2) Counterparty to share acquisition
Sompo Japan Insurance Inc.

(3) Acquired company’s name and business, etc.

a) Name of acquired company
Sompo Japan DIY Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

b) Business
Life insurance business

c) Results of operations (for the fiscal year ended March 2014)

Premium and other income.........ccccoveveieeccciee e, ¥3,901 million ($37 million)
NEt INCOME ...t ¥139 million ($1 million)

d) Financial conditions (as of the end of March 2014)

Total @SSEtS.....eiiiiiiiiiiiiie e ¥5,033 million ($48 million)
NEt @SSELS ....eeieiiiie e s ¥3,837 million ($37 million)
Capital STOCK .....ccciviiiieieriie e ¥10,100 million ($98 million)

(4) Schedule of share acquisition
In July, 2014 (scheduled)
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(5) Number of shares acquired, amount to be invested and DL’s percentage of share holdings after completion of

the transaction

a) Number of shares acquired
360,000 shares

b) Amount to be invested

DL will acquire the 90% stake in DIY Life for ¥5.4 billlion ($52 million) (¥15,000 per share ($145 per share)). Upon
acquisition, it is forecasted that specific compensation and fee to be paid to outside advisors, etc. will occur.

c) DL’s percentage of share holdings after completion of the transaction

100%

(6) Others

The acquisition is subject to the approval of regulatory authorities in Japan.

Three months Six months Nine months Year ended
ended June 30, ended September | ended December March 31, 2014
2013 30, 2013 31,2013
Ordinary revenues (million yen) 1,436,042 2,975,233 4,477,081 6,044,955
Income (loss) before income taxes 49,805 90,363 130,379 147,010
and minority interests (million yen)
Net income (loss) (million yen) 26,307 47,937 73,889 77,931
Net income (loss) per share (yen) 26.54 48.35 74.52 78.58
Three months Three months Three months Three months
ended June 30, ended September | ended December ended March 31,
2013 30, 2013 31,2013 2014
Net income (loss) per share (yen) 26.54 21.81 26.16 4.07
Three months Six months Nine months Year ended
ended June 30, ended September | ended December March 31, 2014
2013 30, 2013 31,2013
Ordinary revenues (million US dollars) 13,952 28,908 43,500 58,734
Incomg (Io.ss). before |ncom.e.taxes 483 877 1.266 1,428
and minority interests  (million US dollars)
Net income (loss) (million US dollars) 255 465 717 757
Net income (loss) per share  (US dollars) 0.25 0.46 0.72 0.76
Three months Three months Three months Three months
ended June 30, ended September | ended December ended March 31,
2013 30, 2013 31,2013 2014
Net income (loss) per share (US dollars) 0.25 0.21 0.25 0.03

Note: The Company conducted a 1:100 share split on October 1, 2013. Net income per share are calculated, assuming that the share split was conducted at the

beginning of the previous fiscal year.
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